RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
FINANCIALS OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
FOR THE FY 2021-22
Sl. Name & Address of the Company
No.

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary

1.

Rico Investments Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U65923HR2015PLC054211

Subsidiary

2.

AAN Engineering Industries Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U28112HR2010PLC039941

Subsidiary

3.

Rico Auto Industries Inc., USA
6338, Sashabaw Road, Clarkston,
Michigan 48346 USA

Foreign Company
Registration No.: 510411449

Subsidiary

4.

Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited
Unit 1, Lewis House, 99 Victoria Road,
London - NW106DJ, UK

Foreign Company
Registration No.: 04975219
(England and Wales)

Subsidiary

5.

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U29110HR2008PLC037708

Subsidiary

6.

Rico Friction Technologies Limited
(formerly Metalart Friction Pvt. Ltd.)
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U29100HR2018PTC073338

Subsidiary

7.

Rasa Autocom Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U74120HR2007PLC037192

Step-down
Subsidiary

8.

Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto
Components Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U34300HR2008PLC037956

Step-down
Subsidiary

9.

Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur Highway,
Gurugram-122001, Haryana

U34200HR2007PLC037021

Step-down
Subsidiary

FINANCIALS
OF
RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
FOR THE FY 2021-22

FINANCIALS
OF
AAN ENGINEERING INDUSTRIES LTD.
FOR THE FY 2021-22

FINANCIALS
OF
RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES INC., USA
FOR THE FY 2021-22

Financial Statements and Report of Independent Auditors
Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021

1

Contents

Page

Independent auditor’s report

3-5

Balance sheet

6

Statement of comprehensive income

7

Statement of changes in equity

8

Statement of cash flows

9

Notes to financial statements

10-18

2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
Board of Directors
Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Report on the Audit of Financial statements
Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rico Auto Industries, Inc. (the “Company”), which
comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2022, and the related statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in stockholders’ equity, and statement of cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
2. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as of March 31, 2022 and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“US GAAP”).
Basis for opinion
3. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (‘IESBA Code’) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United States of
America, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
4. Management is responsible for the other information. Other information does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is obtained at the date of this
auditor’s report.
Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
5. Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with US GAAP and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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8. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
Use of Our Report
9. This report is made solely to the Company’s Board of Directors. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Company’s Board of Directors those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and its Board of Directors, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Gurugram, Haryana

28 May 2022
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Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Balance sheet

Particulars

Note

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

113,637
8,005,499
1,821,127
41,845
9,982,108

619,108
5,897,302
3,909,500
58,772
10,484,682

F
E

67,100
67,100

113
3,200
3,313

10,049,208

10,487,995

5,537,967
25,784
30,906
5,594,657

6,203,764
22,724
(27,500)
6,198,988

5,594,657

6,198,988

25,000

25,000

4,429,551
4,454,551

4,264,007
4,289,007

10,049,208

10,487,995

G

Total liabilities
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock ($10 par value, 2,500 authorised shares; 2,500
issued and outstanding shares as of March 31, 2022 and 2500
issued and outstanding shares as of March 31, 2021)
Retained earnings
Total stockholders' equity
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' equity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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As of
March 31,2021
(US $)

B
C
D
E

Total assets
Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Income taxes payable, net
Total current liabilities

As of
March 31, 2022
(US $)

Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Statement of comprehensive income
Year ended
March 31, 2022
(US $)

Year ended
March 31, 2021
(US $)

Revenue
Sale of traded goods

2,27,05,966

18,353,766

Total revenue

2,27,05,966

18,353,766

Expenses
Cost of goods sold
Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses

2,17,69,156
5,79,345
44,583

17,470,176
566,751
48,425

Total expenses

2,23,93,084

18,085,352

Operating income
Finance charges
Depreciation

3,12,882
65,617
113

268,414
5,190
391

Income before tax
Tax (credit)/expense

2,47,152
81,609

2,62,833
(61,724)

Net income

165,543

324,557

Total comprehensive income for the year

165,543

324,557

Particulars

Notes

J

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Statement of changes in stockholders’ equity

Particulars
Balance as of March 31, 2018

Common stock
Number of
Amount
shares
(US $)
2,500

Total comprehensive income for
the year
Balance as of April 1, 2019

2,500

Total comprehensive income for
the year

-

Balance as of March 31, 2020

2,500

Total comprehensive income for
the year
Balance as of March 31, 2021

2,500

Total comprehensive income for
the year

-

Balance as of March 31, 2022

2,500

25,000
-

25,000
-

25,000
25,000
25,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Retained earnings
(US $)

Total stockholders’ equity
(US $)

3,544,057

3,569,057

220,830

220,830

3,764,887

3,789,887

174,562

174,562

3,939,449

3,964,449

324,557

324,557

4,264,006

4,289,006

165,543

165,543

4,429,549

4,454,549

Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Statements of cash flows
Year ended
March 31, 2022
(US $)

Year ended
March 31, 2021
(US $)

165,543

324,557

113
65,617

391
5,190

2,088,373
(2,108,197)
(46,972)
(665,797)
3,060
58,406

236,989
(1,462,909)
66,881
1,566,802
(3,863)
(124,712)

(439,854)

609,326

Cash flow from investing activities

-

-

Cash flow from financing activities
Finance charges

(65,617)

(5,190)

Net cash used in financing activities

(65,617)

(5,190)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

5,05,471
619,108
113,637

604,136
14,972
619,108

67,100

3,200

Particulars
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Finance charges
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other assets - current and non-current
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Income taxes payable
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for taxes
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Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Notes to Financial statements
March 31, 2022 and 2021
NOTE A - BACKGROUND
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

INFORMATION

AND

SUMMARY

OF

SIGNIFICANT

1. Organization and nature of operations
Rico Auto Industries, Inc. (“the Company”) was incorporated under the laws of state of Delaware, United States
of America. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rico Auto Industries, Limited, an Indian public
limited company. The Company has commenced business operations from January 2002 and is engaged in the
business of marketing and selling auto components manufactured by Rico Auto Industries Limited.
2. Standards issued but not yet effective
ASC 842 Leases
In February 2016, the FASB issued guidance which amends the existing accounting standards leases: ASC 840.
Key changes include:
a) Eliminates the requirement to classify a lease as either operating or finance lease in the books of lessee
b) Introduces a single lessee accounting model, whereby requires lessee to recognize assets and liabilities
for all leases. Entity may elect not to apply this accounting requirement to short term leases and leases for
which underlying asset is of low value
c) Requires lessee to classify cash payments for principal and interest portion of lease arrangement within
financing activities and financing/operating activities respectively in the cash flow statements
d) Requires entities to determine whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset to assess whether that contract is, or contains, a lease
ASC 842 substantially carries forward lessor accounting requirements in ASC 840, Leases. The guidance is
effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after 15 December 2021.
ASC 326 Financial Instruments-Credit Losses
In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-13 (ASU 2016-13) "Financial
Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments" which requires
the measurement and recognition of expected credit losses for financial assets held at amortized cost. ASU 201613 replaces the existing incurred loss impairment model with an expected loss model which requires the use of
forward-looking information to calculate credit loss estimates. It also eliminates the concept of other-thantemporary impairment and requires credit losses related to available-for-sale debt securities to be recorded
through an allowance for credit losses rather than as a reduction in the amortized cost basis of the securities.
These changes will result in earlier recognition of credit losses. The guidance is effective for the company for
fiscal years beginning after 15 December 2022.
Management is in the process of ascertaining the impact of new standards on the Company.
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Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Notes to Financial statements
March 31, 2022 and 2021

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial
statements is as follows:
3.1 Overall considerations
The accompanying financial statement have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“US GAAP”) to reflect the financial position, results of operations, statement of changes in stockholders’ equity
and cash flows of the Company.
3.2 Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. There are no significant estimates and assumptions made by the Company in preparing
these financial statements. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
2.3 Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be cash
equivalents. Cash consist of cash in current accounts maintained with banks.
2.4 Inventories
Inventories consist of finished goods, goods in transit, packaging materials and components, and are stated at
the lower of cost or market value. The cost is determined using first-in-first-out method and includes purchase
price and attributable direct costs, less trade discounts and provisions.
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NOTE A (Continued)
2.5 Revenue recognition
Revenue from sales of auto components is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is
transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange
for those goods or services. Revenues is recognized at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
promised good or service
Provisions for sales discounts and other rebates and damaged product returns are established as a reduction of
product sales revenues.
2.6 Cost of goods sold
The Company’s cost of goods sold, primarily consist of the cost of purchase of auto components and other
direct material costs.
2.7 Income taxes
The provision for current income tax expense is estimated in accordance with the relevant regulations applicable
to the Company. The Company accounts for deferred income taxes under the full liability method, in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 740 “Income Taxes”. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for
the future tax consequences attributable to differences between carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax basis. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured
using enacted tax rates for respective tax jurisdictions as on the date of the financial statements. The effect on
deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in the statement of operations in
the period of change. Based on management’s judgment, the measurement of deferred income tax assets is
reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits where it is more likely than not, that some
portion or all of such benefits will not be realised.
2.8 Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on
a straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the respective assets.
2.9 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow
of economic resources from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the most
reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present
obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are not discounted unless
the timing of the related cash flows is fixed or reliably determinable. Any reimbursement that the Company can
be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is recognised as a separate asset.
However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. All provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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Contingent liabilities
In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is considered
improbable or where the amount of the obligation cannot be determined reliably, no liability is recognised.
Contingent assets
Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset
are considered contingent assets.
2.10 Employee compensation
Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits mainly comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonuses, and other allowances.
Post-employment benefits
The Company does not provide any post-employment benefits.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Particulars

As of
March 31, 2022
(US $)

As of
March 31, 2021
(US $)

1,13,637
1,13,637

619,108
619,108

5,098,571
2,906,928
8,005,499

3,217,321
2,679,981
5,897,302

NOTE B - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
Balances with banks in current accounts
Total
NOTE C - INVENTORIES
Inventories comprise of the following:
Finished goods in transit
Finished goods - imported
Total
NOTE D - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET
Accounts receivable are the receivable that, management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable
future, or until maturity or payoff, are reported in the balance sheets at outstanding amount less any charge-offs
and the allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company charges-off uncollectible receivables when the likelihood
of collection is remote. Generally, the Company considers receivables past due 30 days subsequent to the billing
date; however, the Company may extend credit terms up to 60 days. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers, and generally extends credit without requiring collateral. Credit is extended based
on prior experience with a customer and evaluation of customer’s financial condition. The Company maintains
an allowance for doubtful accounts based on management’s expectations of future losses, which is determined
based on historical experience and current economic environment. Losses have historically been within
management’s expectations. Accounts receivable are charged to bad debt expense when they are deemed
uncollectible based upon management’s periodic review of the accounts.
The analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
Accounts receivable
Total

1,821,127
1,821,127
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3,909,500
3,909,500

As
As of
of
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(US $)
(US $)

Particulars
NOTE E - OTHER ASSETS
Other assets comprise of the following:
Current
Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
Custom duty refundable
Total
Non-current
Prepaid income taxes
Total

10,390
950
30,505
41,845

9,511
950
48,311
58,772

67,100
67,100

3,200
3,200

3,822
(3,822)
-

3,822
(3,709)
113

NOTE F - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Property and equipment comprises of the following:
Computer
Gross block
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total
Depreciation charged during the year

113

391

NOTE G - ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities comprise of the following:
Other expenses payable
Total

25,784

22,724

25,784

22,724

NOTE H - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, other assets and accrued expenses and liabilities because of the shortterm maturities approximate their fair value.
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NOTE I - FINANCIALS INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of
accounts receivable. By their nature, all such financial instruments involve risk including the credit risk of nonperformance by counter parties. The Company monitors the credit worthiness of its customers to which it grants
credit terms in the normal course of the business. Two customers account for 85% of the total revenues and
50% of the total accounts receivable of the Company. (Previous year 91% and 90% respectively).
Significant portion of the purchases made by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 were
from Rico Auto Industries Limited, which accounted for around 98% of the accounts payable.

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2022
(US $)

Year ended
March 31, 2021
(US $)

50,780
8,746
9,203

51,312
8,426
(46,164)
(34,225)

12,880
81,609

(41,073)
(61,724)

NOTE J - INCOME TAXES
Income taxes comprise of the following:
Income tax expense
Federal tax
State tax
Refund of tax
Adjustment of previous year taxes
Deferred income tax expense
Current year
Total tax expense

The reported amount of income tax expense recognised in the statement of comprehensive income does not
differ from the amount that would result from applying the domestic federal statutory rates to pre-tax income
from operations. There are no unrecognised tax positions as of March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.
NOTE K - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Voting
Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by him in the records of the
Company for all matters submitted to a vote.
Liquidation
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of common stock shall be entitled to receive all of the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such amounts will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the stockholders.
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NOTE L - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which may arise in the ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of the management, these actions are not expected to have a material effect on the results of
operations of the financial position of the Company.
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NOTE M - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A. Name and nature of related parties with whom there are transactions during the year and/or
balances as at year end
Name of related party
Holding Company
Rico Auto Industries Limited
B. The following is a summary of related party transactions during the year:
I. Purchase of auto components
Rico Auto Industries Limited (including finished goods in transit)

US $ 2,17,81,982
(Previous year US $ 17,312,719)

II. Balances outstanding at year end:
Accounts payable
Rico Auto Industries Limited (including finished goods in transit)

US $ 5,459,275
(Previous year US $ 6,087,969)

NOTE N - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employees of Rico Auto Industries, Inc. receive benefits under social security schemes, which is a defined
contribution plan based on specified percentage of employee’s salary. The amount contributed $ 9,011 and $
7,447 to various social security schemes that have been recognised as an expense in the Statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 respectively.
Further the expense has been grouped with selling expense on the basis of function amounting to US $ 1,24,010
(previous year US $ 99,531).
NOTE O - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company has evaluated till 28 May 2022 that, there are no subsequent events that require disclosure under
FASB ASC 855, ‘Subsequent Events’.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Director
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Rico Auto Industries Inc.,USA
Balance Sheet as on 30/09/2021
@ 74.38
Schedule Period Ended Period Ended
No.
Mar 31, 2022 - Mar 31, 2022 US$
US$
Provisional
Provisional

Particulars

@ 72.79
Period Ended Period Ended
Mar 31, 2021 - Mar 31, 2021 US$
INR
Audited
Audited

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
Share Capital
Exchange Equilisation Reserve
Reserves & Surplus
Loan Funds

1

25,000
4,429,552
-

1,216,850
42,100,952
294,058,198
-

3

4264008
0

1216850
29454995
284477214
0

4,454,552

337,375,999

4289008

315149059

4

3,822
3,822
-

289,484
289,484
-

3822
3708
113

280828
272494
8334

INVESTMENTS

5

-

0

0

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Inventories
Account Receivables
Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

6
7
8
9

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions

10

TOTAL

25000

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less : Depreciation
Net Block

Net Current Assets
Deffered Tax Assets
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL

11

-

8,005,499
1,821,127
113,637
108,945
10,049,208
5,594,657

606,416,527
137,950,388
8,607,990
8,252,620
761,227,524
423,851,525

5897302
3909500
619108
61972
10487882
6198988

433363267
287289602
45495135
4554021
770702024
455561316

4,454,552

337,375,999

4288895

315140709

-

-

0

0

-

-

0

0

4289008

315149043

4,454,552

337,375,999

Rico Auto Industries Inc., USA
Profit & Loss Account as on 31/03/2022

Particulars

@ 74.38
Period Ended
Period Ended
Schedule Mar 31, 2022 - Mar 31, 2022 No.
US$
INR
Audited
Audited

Period Ended Dec
@31,
72.79
2016 - INR
Period Ended
Period Ended
Mar 31, 2021 - Mar 31, 2021 US$
INR
Audited
Audited

INCOME

Sales - Components
Sales - Scrap
Sales - Tooling & Other Income

12

22705966

1688869775

18353766

1335899030

0

0

0

0

22705966

1688869775

18353766

1335899030

22393084
65617
0

1665597596
4880559
0

18085351
5190
0

1316362183
377760
0

22458700

1670478155

18090541

1316739943

247266
113
247152
1.09%
68729
12880
0
165543
0

18391619
8435
18383184
1.09%
5112063
958014
0
12313107
0

263225
390
262835
1.43%
-20651
-41073
0
324558
0

19159087
28398
19130689
1.43%
-1503082
-2989543
0
23623315
0

165543
0.73%

12313107
0.73%

324558
1.77%

23623315
1.77%

165543

12313107

324558

23623315

165543

12313107

220828

15429250

EXPENDITURE

Manufacturing & Other Expenses
Financial Charges
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off

13
14

Profit before Depreciation
Depreciation
Profit After Depreciation
Provision for Income Tax
Provision for Deferred Tax
Reversal of Deffered Tax Assets
Profit After Tax
Less : Previous Year Income tax paid
Amount Available for Appropriations
%
APPROPRIATIONS

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet

Rico Auto Industries Inc., USA
Schedule of Balance Sheet as on 30/09/2021
@ 74.38
Period Ended Mar Period Ended
31, 2022 - US$
Mar 31, 2022 INR
Provisional
Provisional

Particulars

Schedule 1 - Share Capital
AUTHORISED
2500 Equity Shares US$ 10 Par
ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
2500 Equity Shares US$ 10 Par
'(Previous Period 2500 Equity Shares US$ 10 Par)
Exchange Fluctuation

Schedule 2 - Reserves & Schedules
SURPLUS
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add : Transferred from Profit & Loss Account

Schedule 3- Loan Funds

Schedule 4- Fixed Assets

Schedule 5- Investments

Schedule 6- Inventories
(As valued and certified by the Management)
Goods in Transit
Finished Goods
Packing Materials

Schedule 7 - Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured considered good)
Advance to Vendors
Other Debts
Less : Provision for Uncollectibles

d

Schedule 8 - Cash and bank Balances
Balances with scheduled banks
In current accounts

Schedule 9 - Loans and Advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value
to be received
Security Deposit Refundable
Custom Duty Refundable
Advance Tax (Non Current Assets)

e
j

@ 72.79
Period Ended
Period Ended
Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2021 US$
INR
Audited
Audited

25000

1182250

25000

1182250

25000

1216850

25000

1216850

25000

1216850

25000

1216850

4264008

281745091

3939450

260853883

165543
4429552

12313107
294058198

324558
4264008

23623331
284477214

0

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

0

3822

289484

3822

280828

3822

289484

3822

280828

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

5098571
2906928
0

386216768
220199759
0

3217322
2679981
0

236424885
196938382
0

8005499

606416527

5897302

433363267

359284
1461844
0

27215742
110734646
0

0
3909500
0

0
287289602
0

1821127

137950388

3909500

287289602

113637
113637

8607990
8607990

619108
619108

45495135
45495135

10390
950
30505
67100

787075.83
71963
2310757
5082825

9511
950
48312
3200

698884
69811
3550174
235152

108945

8252620

61972

4554021

5537967
0
25784
-28193
59099

419500987
0
1953138
-2079350
4476749

6203764
0
22724
-41073
13573

455883574
0
1669873
-2989543
997412

5594657

423851525

6198988

455561316

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Schedule 10 - Current Liabilities and Provisions
Sundry Creditors - Trade
Advance from Customer
Expenses Payable
Deferred Tax Assets/Liability
Income Tax Provision- for the year till date

Schedule 11 - Miscellaneous Expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

c
a

Rico Auto Industries Inc.,USA

Schedule of Profit & Loss Account as on 30/09/2021
@ 74.38
Period Ended Period Ended Mar
Mar 31, 2022 31, 2022 - INR
US$
Provisional
Provisional

Particulars

Schedule 12 - Sales & other Income
Sales - Components
Sales - Tooling
Sales - Other Income
i
Schedule 13 - Manufacturing & Other Expenses
Cost of material consumed
Purchases of Raw Materials
Add : Opening Finished Goods
Less : Closing Finished Goods
Net Raw Materials consumed
Components (USA)
Purchase Tooling ( Rico India )
Balance Written Off
Job Work Charges
Consumables
Packing Materials
Warehousing Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Inspection & Rework Expenses
Testing Expenses
Audit Fees
Legal & Professional
Fees & Taxes
Rent
Insurance (Warehouse & Worker Policy)
Bond service & premium
Administration Expenses

b

g

f

General Expenses
Travelling Expenses
Printing & Stationary
Telephone Expenses
Postage & Courier
General Expenses + Short & Excess

Income Tax paid
Selling Expenses
Sales Promotion
Freight Charges
Freight Charges
Clearing & Forwarding
Repair Maintenance Others
Salaries (Jeffrey Thielen )
Provi. For Uncollectible D/D

Schedule 14 - Financial Charges
Bank Interest - GKN Discounting
Bank Charges

22,705,966
22,705,966

1,688,869,775
1,688,869,775

18,353,766
18,353,766

1,335,899,030
1,335,899,030

21,781,982
2,679,981
2,906,928
21,555,035

1,620,454,735
203,008,538
220,199,759
1,603,263,514

17,312,719
2,637,226
2,679,981
17,269,964

1,260,155,173
193,796,542
196,938,382
1,257,013,333

214,121
21,769,156

15,926,301
1,619,189,816

0.94

200,212
17,470,176

8,100
4,698
785
11,400
15,257
600
40,840

602,478
349,442
58,355
847,932
1,134,825
44,628
3,037,660

0.04
0.02
0.00
0.05
0.07
0.00
-

8,330
9,172
692
11,400
14,409
44,003

3,503
110
130
3,744

16
260,590
8,182
9,671
278,458

0.02
0.00
0.00

-

-

h

@ 69.87
Period Ended
Period Ended
Mar 31, 2021 - Mar 31, 2021 US$
INR
Audited
Audited

-

6,030
449,304
124,010
579,345

448,537
33,419,226
9,223,900
43,091,663

22,393,084

1,665,597,596

52,576
13,040

3,910,630
969,929

65,617

4,880,559

94.93

-

0.03
1.98
0.55
-

47
4,324
22
28
4,422
-

94.09

(0.84)

14,572,632
1,271,585,966

1.09

0.15

606,308
667,581
50,396
829,762
1,048,758
3,202,805

0.05
0.05
0.00
0.06
0.08
-

0.01
0.03
0.00
0.01
0.01
(0.00)
-

3,457
314,703
1,601
2,073
321,834

0.00
0.02
0.00
0.00

0.00
0.01
(0.00)
(0.00)

-

2,538
461,731
2,951
99,531
566,751

184,746
33,607,591
214,774
7,244,452
41,251,563

18,085,351

1,316,362,167

0.23
0.06

5,190

3.98
98.91

5,190

-

-

0.01
2.52
0.02
0.54
-

(0.01)
0.54
0.02
(0.00)
-

377,760

0.03

(0.23)
(0.03)

377,760

4.47
98.57

0.49
0.35

FINANCIALS
OF
RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES (UK) LIMITED
FOR THE FY 2021-22

Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited, UK
Balance Sheet
@ 99.31

@ 96.7574

For the Year
For the Year
Schedule ended Mar 31, ended Mar 31,
No.
2022-GBP
2022-INR
(Provisional)
(Provisional)

Particulars

For the Year
For the Year
ended Mar 31, ended Mar
2021-GBP
31, 2021-INR
(Audited)
(Audited)

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
Share Capital
Exchange Equalisation Reserve
Reserves & Surplus

Loan Funds

1

20000

1628400

20000

1628400

2

661921

66093169

684055

69396674

3

0

TOTAL

0

681921

67721569

704055

71025074

4

5167
4991
176

513138
495649
17488

5167
4908
259

521250
495112
26138

INVESTMENTS

5

0

0

0

0

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Inventories
Sundry Debtors
Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

6
7
8
9

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions

10

14898
52108
220033
3094
290134
-391612

1479470
5174883
21851443
307285
28813081
-38890999

154910
205752
22454
3370
386486
-317310

15627363
20756246
2265202
339937
38988748
-32010188

681746

67704080

703796

70998936

681922

67721569

704055

71025074

1

0

0

0

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less : Depreciation
Net Block

Net Current Assets
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL

11

Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited, UK
Profit and Loss Account
@ 101.60

Particulars

Schedule
No.

For the Year
ended Mar 31,
2022-GBP
(Provisional)

@ 96.7574

For the Year
ended Mar 31,
2022-INR
(Provisional)

For the Year
ended Mar 31,
2021-GBP
(Provisional)

For the Year
ended Mar 31,
2021-INR
(Provisional)

INCOME

Sales

12

511858

52004731

577474

58239724

511858

52004731

577474

58239724

543536
1478

55223215
150127

596272
1611

60135570
162443

545013

55373342

597883

60298014

-33156

-3368611

-20409

-2058290

-6.48%

-6.48%

-3.53%

-3.53%

83
-33239
-11105
-22134
0

8433
-3377044
-1128217
-2248827
0

121
-20530
0
-20530
0

12203
-2070493
0
-2070493
0

EXPENDITURE

Manufacturing & Other Expenses
Financial Charges

13
14

Profit before Depreciation
Depreciation
Profit After Depreciation
Provision for Income Tax
Profit After Tax
Less : Previous Year Income tax Paid
Amount Available for Appropriations

%

-22134

-2248827

-20530

-2070493

-4.32%

-4.32%

-3.56%

-3.56%

-22134

-2248827

-20530

-2070493

-22134

-2248827

-20530

-2070493

APPROPRIATIONS

Balance carried over to Balance Sheet

Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited, UK
Schedules to Balance Sheet
@ 99.31

Particulars

@ 100.88

As at Mar 31,
2022-GBP

As at Mar 31,
2022-INR

As at Mar 31,
2021-GBP

As at Mar 31,
2021-INR

(Provisional)

(Provisional)

(Audited)

(Audited)

Schedule 1 - Share Capital

AUTHORISED
20000 Equity Shares GBP 1 Par
ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
20000 Equity Shares GBP 1 Par
(Previous Year - 20000 Equity Shares GBP 1 Par)

Schedule 2 - Reserves & Schedules
SURPLUS
As per Last Balance Sheet
Exchange Diff
Add : Transferred from Profit & Loss Account

Schedule 3- Loan Funds

Schedule 4- Fixed Assets
Gross block
Less : Accumulated Depreciation
Net Block
Schedule 5- Investments

Schedule 6- Inventories
(As valued and certified by the Management)
Goods in Transit
Finished Goods
Component - Tooling Stock

Schedule 7 - Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Advance to Vendors
Trade Debtors
FCRtFluctnAdj-Rcvbls
Less : Provision for Uncollectibles

Schedule 8 - Cash and bank Balances
Balances with scheduled banks
In current accounts

Schedule 9 - Loans and Advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to
be received
Security Deposits

Schedule 10 - Current Liabilities and Provisions
Sundry Creditors
Rico Auto Industries Ltd.
FCRtFluctnAdj-Pbls
Advance from Customer
Other Trade-Payables
VAT Payable / Refundable
Provision for Income Tax
TDS Payable
National Insurance payable
Expenses Payable

20000

1682400

20000

1682400

20000

1628400

20000

1628400

20000

1628400

20000

1628400

684055

704585

-22134
661921

67079688
1262307
-2248827
66093169

-20530
684055

67079688
4387479
-2070493
69396674

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

5167
4991
176

513138
495649
17488

5167
4908
259

521250
495112
26138

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

6050
8849
0

600692
878777
0

114738
40173
0

11574725
4052638
0

14898

1479470

154911

15627363

0
0
52267
-159
0
52108

0
0
5190673
-15789
0
5174883

0
56674
162847
-4877
-8893
205752

0
5717288
16428028
-491951
-897119
20756246

220033
220033

21851443
21851443

22454
22454

2265202
2265202

962
2132
3094

95526
211759
307285

1237
2132
3370

124831
215106
339937

-395887
-6522
0
235
1226
0
0
144
9192

-39315493
-647740
0
23385
121712
0
0
14254
912883

-313431
-3350
0
6009
-18568
0
255
314
11462

-31618950
-337902
0
606185
-1873120
0
25684
31645
1156268

-391612

-38890999

-317310

-32010188

]

Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited
Schedules to Profit & Loss Account

Particulars

Schedule 12 - Sales & other Income
Sales Componenet
Sales Tooling - Rico India
Other Income

@ 101.60
For the Year
For the Year
ended Mar 31, ended MAr 31,
2022-GBP
2022-INR
(Provisional)
(Provisional)

% age

@ 96.7574
For the Year
For the Year
ended Mar 31,
ended Mar 31,
2021-GBP
2021-INR
(Audited)
(Audited)

511858
0
0

52004731
0
0

562303
10000
5171
0

54406960
967574
500320
0

511858

52004731

577474

55874854

466710
0
0
0
0
30726
214
1645
0
0
24757
11715
6000
0
0
40
70
1131
0
922
0
1276
0
3330
3585
-41
349
-8893

47417751
0
0
0
0
3121798
21697
167101
0
0
2515316
1190268
609600
0
0
4020
7111
114862
0
93655
0
129682
0
338376
364246
-4155
35409
-903522

520494
0
0
0
0
30726
32
1143
0
0
24807
12887
6000
0
262
55
31
1249
0
922
0
1197
0
1530
4766
74
0
-9904

52493175
0
0
0
0
3098833
3265
115322
0
0
2501878
1299663
605116
0
26423
5548
3164
125915
0
92966
0
120696
0
154328
480649
7491
0
-998862

543536

55223215

596272

60135570

1478
0

150127
0

1611
0

162443
0

1478

150127

1611

162443

% age

Schedule 13 - Manufacturing & Other Expenses

Purchase of Raw Materials & Components
Purchase of Tooling from Rico India
Tooling Expenses
Rework Expenses
Clearing Exps a/c
Salaries
Labour & Staff Welfare
Legal & Professional Expenses
Consumables- Inde Consumed
Packing Material - Inde Consumed
Warehousing Expenses
Rent
Audit Charges
Income Tax Matter
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Postage & Telegram
Insurance
National Insurance a/c
NEST Expense
Inspection Charges
Telephone Expenses
Business Promotion
Fees & Taxes
Freight & Cartages
General Expenses
Foreign Exchange Fluctuations
Bad Debt Account

Schedule 14 - Financial Charges
Bank Charges
Interest A/c. (JP Morgan)

91.18
0.00
0.00
0.00
6.00
0.04
0.32
0.00
0.00
4.84
2.29
1.17
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.01
0.22
0.00
0.18
0.00
0.25
0.00
0.65
0.70
-0.01
0.07
-1.74

0.29
0.00

15.30

91.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.28
0.00
0.05
0.00
0.00
3.67
0.11
0.06
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.03
0.00
0.01
0.00
0.02
1.32
2.73
0.07
0.01
2.19
0.00

0.02
0.00

8.25

FINANCIALS
OF
RICO FLUIDTRONICS LIMITED
FOR THE FY 2021-22

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Financial assets
Investments
Loans
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

₹

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Other non current liabilities
Total non-current liablilities
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (Net)
Total current liablilities

₹
2,047.07
109.91
2.57

1,659.91
262.49
7.06

5
6
7
26
8

951.00
1,186.11
38.94
134.49
38.65
4,508.74

950.00
1,533.33
37.29
113.35
206.63
4,770.06

9

460.86

264.04

10
11
6
7
8

1,905.16
168.56
213.89
54.05
88.48

1,633.14
210.69
166.67
49.75
50.53

2,891.00

2,374.82

7,399.74

7,144.88

4,224.00
763.98

4,224.00
594.40

4,987.98

4,818.40

32
14
15

646.94
54.98
6.49
708.41

712.76
55.30
10.20
778.26

32

65.83

53.22

16
16
17
15
14

80.38
1,306.53

23.36
1,294.69

182.56
33.18
9.40
25.49
1,703.38

73.81
65.27
8.68
29.19
1,548.22

2,411.79
7,399.74

2,326.48
7,144.88

12
13

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

As at
Mar 31, 2021

4
4A
4B

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

As at
Mar 31, 2022

Notes

1 to 44

0.01

(0.00)

0.01

(0.00)

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 001076N/N500013
Chartered Accountants

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Place : New Delhi
Date: 28 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rico Fluidtronics Limited

Kaushalendra Verma
Managing Director
DIN: 02004259

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 01537211

Sanjit Kumar Jana
Chief Financial officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

Place : Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2022

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
INCOME
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income (I)
EXPENSES
Cost of material consumed
Purchase of stock in trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock in trade
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Notes

For the Year ended March 31,
2022

18
19

6,556.87
244.06
6,800.93

5,197.57
191.56
5,389.13

20
20A
21
22
23
24
25

4,345.33
197.14
(81.74)
581.35
68.38
374.05
509.91

3,277.01
84.11
60.66
531.34
69.81
404.93
417.47

5,994.42

4,845.33

806.51

543.80

235.53
(21.09)
214.44
592.07

170.33
(36.46)
133.87
409.93

(0.13)
0.04
(0.09)

1.13
(0.29)
0.84

591.98

410.77

1.40

0.97

Total expenses( II)
Profit before tax (I-II)
Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax credit
Total Tax expense
Profit for the year (III)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to these items
Total other comprehensive income for the year (IV)

For the Year ended March
31, 2021

26

26

Total comprehensive income for the year (III)+(IV)

Earnings per equity share [Nominal value per share ₹ 10/- (Previous year value per share ₹
10/-)]
Basic and diluted (in ₹)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

27
1 to 44

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 001076N/N500013
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rico Fluidtronics Limited

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Kaushalendra Verma
Managing Director
DIN: 02004259

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 01537211

Sanjit Kumar Jana
Chief Financial officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: 28 May 2022

Place : Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2022

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31,2022
(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
For the Year ended March
31, 2022

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense
Interest income from loans to related parties
Provision for warranty
Finance costs
Export incentives
Interest income on security deposit
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments

working capital adjustments:
Changes in working capital :
Other assets
Other financial assets
Trade receivables
Inventories
Trade payables and other liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Direct tax (paid) /net of refunds

For the Year ended March
31, 2021

806.51

543.80

374.05
(2.13)
10.44
68.38
(4.23)
(1.65)
1,251.38

404.93
(12.58)
2.04
69.81
(5.12)
(1.65)
1,001.23

91.90
(51.33)
(272.02)
(196.82)
74.01
42.97
(10.76)
929.32
(0.13)

(484.25)
143.54
4.53
81.54
(336.37)
(12.99)
(16.31)
380.92
(121.09)

929.19

259.83

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in Rico Care Foundation.
Loan to related parties
Interest received on bank deposits

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

(776.06)
(1.00)
347.22
2.50

(133.19)
2.44
(333.33)
20.59

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

(427.33)

(443.49)

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (including dividend distribution tax)
Bank charges paid
Repayment of lease liabilities-principal payment
Repayment of lease liabilities-interest payment

(422.40)
(1.60)
(53.21)
(66.78)

(422.40)
(1.47)
(48.66)
(68.34)

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

(543.99)

(540.87)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents[D= (A+B+C)]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (E)

(42.13)
210.69

(724.53)
935.22

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E)

168.56

210.69

118.56
50.00
168.56

35.11
174.94
210.69

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)
This is the Cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date

The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared in accordance with 'Indirect method' as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on 'Statement of Cash Flows', as notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the relevant rules thereunder.
This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 001076N/N500013
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rico Fluidtronics Limited

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Kaushalendra Verma
Managing Director
DIN: 02004259

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 01537211

Sanjit Kumar Jana
Chief Financial officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: 28 May 2022

Place : Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2022

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
A. Equity share capital
No. of shares
422.40
422.40
422.40

Balance as at March 31, 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Amount
4,224.00
4,224.00
4,224.00

B. Other equity
Balance as at March 31, 2020

Retained earnings
60,602,628

Retained earnings
606.02

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend on equity shares
Balance as at March 31, 2021

40,993,930
84,370
41,078,300
(42,240,000)
59,440,927

409.94
0.84
410.78
(422.40)
594.40

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividend on equity shares
Balance as at March 31, 2022

592
(0)
592
(422)
59,441,097

592.07
(0.09)
591.98
(422.40)
763.98

This is the Statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. : 001076N/N500013
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Rico Fluidtronics Limited

Arun Tandon
Partner
Membership No.: 517273

Kaushalendra Verma
Managing Director
DIN: 02004259

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Director
DIN: 01537211

Sanjit Kumar Jana
Chief Financial officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

Place : New Delhi
Date: 28 May 2022

Place : Gurugram
Date: 28 May 2022

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31,
2022
1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Rico Fluidtronics Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on March 14, 2008 for manufacture of water and oil
pumps used for two and four-wheeler automobiles. The Company was a joint venture between Rico Auto
Industries Limited (RAIL) and Magna Powertrain Gmbh (Erstwhile Magna Powertrain AG). On March 29, 2019,
Magna Power Train GMBH transferred its 50% shareholding to RAIL and Rasa Autocom Limited (100% subsidiary
of RAIL). The Company’s registered office is based in Gurugram, Haryana and manufacturing facility at Manesar,
Haryana.

2.

BASIS OF PREPERATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis for preparation and measurement
a) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies mentioned below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange of goods or services. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noncurrent
according to the Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Act. Based on the nature of products
and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current
classification of assets and liabilities. The principal accounting policies are set out below.
b)

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in INR Lakhs (₹), which is also the Company’s functional currency.
c)

Going concern and basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention on
accrual basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities, defined benefit plans that are measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Act.
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
➢

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

➢

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

➢

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

➢

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
➢

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

➢

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
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➢

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

➢

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
b) Revenue recognition
In accordance with Ind AS 115, Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods
or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements.
(i) Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The normal credit term is 30 to 60 days upon delivery.
(ii) Warranty obligations
The Company provides warranty for general repairs for three years on all its products sold, in line with the
industry practice. A liability is recognised at the time the product is sold – see Note 15 for more information.
The Company does not provide any extended warranties or maintenance contracts to its customers.
(iii) Variable consideration
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of products provide customers with a right to claim RM indexation benefit (revision in price of raw
material based upon variation in index prices) and giveback benefit (benefits to be given because of
improvement in production process). The RM indexation and giveback benefits give rise to variable
consideration.
(iv) RM indexation and giveback benefits
The Company provides RM indexation and giveback benefits to certain customers based on revision in
price of raw material due to variation in index prices and benefits to be given because of improvement in
production process. Benefits are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future benefits, the Company applies the most likely amount method for
contracts. The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration
and recognises a refund liability for the expected future benefits
c) Foreign currency transactions:
Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount,
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.
Subsequent recognition
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are reported using the closing rate as at the reporting date.
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Non-monetary items, which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise, except for exchange differences arising on foreign currency
monetary items.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
d)

Government grants
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

e) Income taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
Minimum alternate tax
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance
Sheet when it is highly probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that
the MAT credit would be realised i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.”
The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to
the extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified
period.
f)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its
working condition for its intended use. Incidental expenditure pending allocation and attributable to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment is allocated/capitalised with the related property, plant and
equipment. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction and is carried at cost.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit or
loss.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is derecognised.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Particulars
Plant and machinery
Office equipments
Furniture and fixtures
Dies and moulds
Computers

Estimated useful lives (years)
10 years
5 years
10 years
5 years
3 years

Lease hold improvements is amortised on straight line basis over the period of lease/contract or the assessed
useful lives, whichever is lower.
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The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful
life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic
and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
h)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If
the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is
changed accordingly. If there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of economic benefits from
the asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.
Costs incurred on acquisition of intangible assets are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over
useful lives, as mentioned below:
Intangible assets
Software
Drawings and designs

i)

Estimated useful lives (years)
3 to 5 years
4 years

Leases
Company as a lessee
The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for Building and Plant & machinery. The
Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset, (2) the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease, and (3) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the Right of use (ROU) the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset).
The ROU assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs
less any lease incentives. They are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset.
The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. For
leases under which the rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate based on the information available at the date of commencement of the lease in determining the
present value of lease payments. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the
related ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment as to whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 01, 2021 is 9% p.a.
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j)

Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:
Raw materials, stores and spares
Lower of cost and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of
inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cost.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes cost incurred in bringing the material to its present
location and condition.
Work-in-progress and finished goods
Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k) Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.
l)

Provisions
General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Warranty provisions
Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service provided to the
customer. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is
revised annually.

m) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
n)

Employee benefits:
Wages, salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave and sick leave are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Company. The Company also provides benefit of compensated
absences under which un-availed leaves are allowed to be accumulated and can be availed in future. The
Company has three post-employment benefit plans in operation viz. Gratuity, Provident Fund and Employee State
Insurance scheme.
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i)

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme

Provident Fund benefit and Employee State Insurance benefit are defined contribution plans under which the
Company pays fixed contributions into funds established under Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provision Act, 1952 and Employee State Insurance Act, 1948 respectively. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions
recognised in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they accrue. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are included in current liabilities or current assets,
respectively, as they are normally of a short-term nature.
ii) Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan, which defines an amount of benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
remuneration. The legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of plan remains with the Company, even if plan
assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. The liability recognised in the balance sheet for
defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation (‘DBO’) at the balance sheet date less
the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service
costs. The DBO is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. All
actuarial gains and losses are recorded through the statement of other comprehensive income.
iii) Compensated absences
The liability for employees compensated absences is provided for in accordance with the rules of the Company
and is based on actuarial valuations made using projected unit method at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gain
and losses are routed through the statement of profit and loss.
o) Financial instruments
Initial recognition
The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition,
except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through
profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular purchase and sale of financial assets are
accounted for at trade date.
Subsequent measurement
i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets which are not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently measured at fair
valued through profit or loss.
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De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognise its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognise a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss.
iv) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade
and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate
fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability shall be derecognized when, and only when it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.
p) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.
q) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the
Company’s cash management.
r)

Cash dividend distribution to equity holders
The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised
directly in equity.

s) Segment reporting
The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of water pump and oil pump used for two and fourwheeler automobiles and hence entire operation represents a single primary segment.
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t)

Standards issued but not effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide notification dated 23rd March 2022, has made the following
amendments to Ind AS which are effective 1st April, 2022:
a. Ind AS 109: Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
b. Ind AS 103: Reference to Conceptual Framework
c. Ind AS 37: Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
d. Ind AS 16: Proceeds before intended use
Based on preliminary assessment, the Company does not expect these amendments to have any impact on its
standalone financial statements.

3

Significant estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require
a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with
information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
The areas involving significant estimates or judgments are:
(i) Measurement of defined benefit obligations;
(ii) Weighted average incremental borrowing rate;
(iii) Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment;
(iv) Provision of contingent liabilities;
(v) Carrying values of inventories;
(vi) Cash flow projections and liquidity assessments;
(vii) Leases; and
(viii)

Deferred tax assets

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
4 Property, Plant and Equipment
Particulars

Leasehold improvements

Right-of-use
asset #

Furniture and
fixtures

Office equipments

Computers

Dies and Moulds

Plant and
Equipment

Total

Gross carrying value
Balance as at April 01, 2020
Additions
Disposal
Balance as at March 31, 2021

77.33
77.33

833.66
833.66

19.15
0.20
19.35

5.65
5.65

25.49
25.49

23.58
23.58

2,146.40
195.34
(2.44)
2,339.30

3,131.26
195.54
(2.44)
3,324.36

Additions
Disposal
Balance as at March 31, 2022

7.18
84.51

833.66

19.35

5.65

25.49

23.58

749.54
3,088.84

756.72
4,081.08

Balance as at April 01, 2020

77.33

38.60

13.91

4.50

8.97

22.46

1,101.93

1,267.70

Depreciation expense
Disposal
Balance as at March 31, 2021

77.33

92.63
131.23

2.84
16.75

0.44
4.94

6.59
15.56

1.12
23.58

293.13
1,395.06

396.95
1,664.65

Depreciation expense
Disposal
Balance as at March 31, 2022

77.33

92.63
223.86

0.75
17.50

0.38
5.32

3.47
19.03

23.58

272.33
1,667.39

369.56
2,034.21

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying value
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Balance as at March 31, 2022

7.18

702.43

2.60

0.71

9.93

-

944.24

1,659.91

609.80

1.85

0.33

6.46

-

1,421.45

2,047.07
10,991,149

Notes
1. For details regarding contractual commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, refer note 38
# relates to factory and offfice building taken on lease
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4A Capital work-in-progress
As at

Particulars

Mar 31, 2022

Capital Work in progress

109.91

Total

109.91

As at
Mar 31, 2021

262.49

262.49

CWIP ageing schedule:
Particulars
Projects in progress
As at 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2021

Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years

107.75
262.49

2.16
-

-

More than
3 years

Total

-

109.91
262.49

There are no projects as on each reporting period where activity had been suspended . Also there are no projects as on the reporting period
which has exceeded cost as compared to its original plan or where completion is overdue.
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4B Intangible assets
Particulars
Gross carrying value
As at April 01, 2020
Additions
Disposal
As at Mar 31, 2021
Additions
Disposal
As at Mar 31, 2022
Accumulated amortization
As at April 01, 2020
Amortization expense
Disposal
As at Mar 31, 2021
Amortization expense
Disposal
As at Mar31,2022
Net carrying value
As at Mar 31, 2021
As at Mar 31, 2022

Softwares

Design and
drawings

Total

41.32
-

139.69
-

181.01
-

41.32
41.32

139.69
139.69

181.01

29.05
5.21

136.72
2.97

165.77
8.18

34.26
4.49
38.75

139.69
139.69

173.95
4.49

7.06
2.57

0.00
0.00

7.06
2.57

181.01

178.44
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Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2022

As at
Mar 31, 2021

950.00

950.00

5. Investments
Non current
Investments in equity instruments in associate (at cost) - unquoted
Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited
9,500,000 (March 31, 2021: 9,500,000) equity shares of ₹ 10/- each
Rico Care Foundation
10,000 (March 31, 2021: Nil) equity shares of ₹ 10/- each
Total

1.00

-

951.00

950.00

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

951.00

950.00

1,186.11

1,533.33

213.89
1,400.00

166.67
1,700.00

6. Loans and advances
(carried at amortised cost)
(Unsecured, considered good)
Non current
Loans to related parties
Current
Loans to related parties
Total
Details of loans outstanding
Particulars

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Loan of INR 500.00 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 500.00 lakhs) to Rico Casting Limited
(a) The unsecured loan is repayable in 36 quarterly instalments after completion of 1 year from date of final disbursement. The quarterly instalments will be
due on the last day of each quarter.
(b) The interest rate applicable is 8% p.a (31 March 2021: 8%p.a) (payable on quaterly basis).
(c) The loan is to be utilised for operational activities carried out by the borrower.

500.00

500.00

Loan of INR 600.00 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 600.00 lakhs) to Rico Casting Limited
(a) The unsecured loan is repayable in 36 quarterly instalments after completion of 1 year from date of final disbursement. The quarterly instalments will be
due at the end of 30 days from the end of each quarter.
(b) The interest rate applicable is 8% p.a (31 March 2021: 8%p.a) (payable on quaterly basis).
(c) The loan is to be utilised for operational activities carried out by the borrower.

600.00

600.00

Loan of INR 300.00 lakhs (31 March 2021: INR 300.00 lakhs) to AAN Engineering Industries Limited
(a) The unsecured loan is repayable in after completion of 8 years from date of final disbursement.
(b) The interest rate applicable is 8% p.a (31 March 2021:8%p.a) (payable on quaterly basis).
(c) The loan is to be utilised for operational activities carried out by the borrower.

300.00

300.00

-

300.00

1,400

1,700

Security deposits
Total

38.94
38.94

37.29
37.29

Current
(Unsecured considered good)
Interest accrued on
-Bank deposit
-Loans given to related parties
Export Incentive receivable
Loan to employees
Total

0.18
38.64
15.23
54.05

0.56
39.11
6.38
3.70
49.75

Loan of Nil (31 March 2021: INR 300.00 lakhs) to Kapbros Engineering Industries Limited
(a) The unsecured loan is repaid in current financial year.
Total
7. Other financial assets
(carried at amortised cost)
Non-current
(Unsecured considered good)
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8. Other assets
Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Balances with government authorities
Total

24.37
14.28
38.65

171.91
17.99
16.73
206.63

Current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers
Balances with government authorities
Total

11.69
67.63
9.16
88.48

15.61
33.84
1.08
50.53

As at
Mar 31, 2022

Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2021

9. Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw materials
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares

250.96
70.40
70.39
69.11

-

135.55
37.81
21.24
69.44

Total

460.86

264.04

-

₹

10. Trade Receivables

-

(Unsecured, considered good)
Total

1,905.16
1,905.16

1,633.14
1,633.14

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled upto 30-60 days terms. For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, Refer note 33.
Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars

(i) Undisputed trade receivables – considered good
(ii) Undisputed trade Receivables – which have significant increase in
credit risk
Total

Unbilled

Not Due

Less than 6
months

6 months- 1
1-2 years
year

Total
2-3 years

More than 3 years

-

1,309.84
-

570.14
-

25.09
-

0.09
-

-

-

1,905.16
-

-

1,309.84

570.14

25.09

0.09

-

-

1,905.16

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars
(i) Undisputed trade receivables – considered good
(ii) Undisputed trade Receivables – which have significant increase in
credit risk
Total

Unbilled

Not Due
-

1,242.78
-

-

1,242.78

Less than 6 6 months- 1
1-2 years
months
year
390.30
0.10
390.30

-

Total
2-3 years

0.10

More than 3 years
-

-

1,633.18
-

-

-

1,633.18

Note: There are no disputed amount receivables from the customers.
-

11. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
-On current accounts
-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Total

0.64

0.64

117.92
50.00
168.56

35.11
174.94
210.69

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.
(Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)

13. Other equity
Retained earnings
Total

-

-

763.98
763.98

594.40
594.40

594.40
592.07
(0.09)
(422.40)
763.98

606.02
409.94
0.84
(422.40)
594.40

13.1. Retained arnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Profit transferred from statement of profit and loss
Add : Other comprehensive income for the year arising from remeasurement of defined benfit obligations (net of income taxes)
Less : Final dividend on equity shares*
Balance at the end of the year
Note: Retained earnings are created from the profit/loss of the Company, as adjsuted for distributions to the owners, transfer to other reserves etc.
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Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2022

14. Provisions

-

Provision for employee benefits
(a) Provision for gratuity (Refer note 34)
(b) Provision for compensated absences
Others
Provision for warranty*
Current
Provision for employee benefits
(a) Provision for gratuity (Refer note 34)
(b) Provision for compensated absences
Others
Provision for warranty*
Total
*Movement in provision for warranty
Opening provision
Add: Charge for the year
Less: Utilised during the year
Closing provision

15. Other liabilities

As at
Mar 31, 2021
-

26.01
15.32

25.02
15.56

13.65
54.98

14.72
55.30
-

₹

₹

2.18
1.75

1.81
1.40

5.47
9.40

5.47
8.68

-

-

20.19
10.44
(11.51)
19.12

34.26
2.04
(16.11)
20.19

-

-

Non-current
Export obligation deferred income
Total

6.49
6.49

10.20
10.20

Current
Advances from customers
Statutory liabilities
Export obligation deferred income
Total

0.50
28.97
3.71
33.18

0.50
60.54
4.23
65.27

80.38
1,306.53
1,386.91

23.36
1,294.69
1,318.05

16. Trade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises (Refer note 33)
Total
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Dues to micro, small and medium enterprises
The dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to the extent information available with the Company is given below:

As at
Mar 31, 2022

Particulars

As at
Mar 31, 2021

The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year:
- Principal
- Interest
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006)

80.38

23.36

-

-

The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year.

-

-

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed date during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006.

-

-

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year.
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the
MSMED Act, 2006.

-

-

-

-

Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2022

Unbilled
(i) MSME
(ii) Others

192.06

Total

192.06

Outstanding for following periods from due date
Less than 1
1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 years
year
80.38
1,001.82
92.15
20.56
-

Total

Not due

1,082.19

92.15

20.56

-

80.38
1,306.59

-

1,386.97

Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2021

(i) MSME
(ii) Others

219.67

Outstanding for following periods from due date
Less than 1
1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 years
year
23.36
753.81
190.74
130.47
-

Total

219.67

777.17

Unbilled

Not due

190.74

130.47

Total
23.36
1,294.69

-

1,318.05

There are no disputed amount payable to the parties.
Trade payable are non-interest bearing and are normally settled upto 30-60 days terms. For outstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party payables, Refer note 33.

Particulars

17. Other financial liabilities
Current
Payable for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Employee related payables
Total

As at
Mar 31, 2022

As at
Mar 31, 2021

-

-

51.39
131.17
182.56

73.81
73.81
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As at
Mar 31, 2022

Particulars

12. Equity share capital
a) Authorised shares
50,000,000 equity shares of ₹ 10/- each
(March 31, 2020: 50,000,000 equity shares of ₹ 10/- each)

As at
Mar 31, 2021

5,000.00

5,000.00

4,224.00

4,224.00

4,224.00

4,224.00

As at
Mar 31, 2022
No. of Shares
Amount
422.40
4,224.00
422.40
4,224.00

As at
Mar 31, 2021
No. of Shares
Amount
422.40
4,224.00
422.40
4,224.00

b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
42,240,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each
(March 31, 2020 : 42,240,000 equity shares of ₹ 10/- each )

c) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of year

Equity shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Movement during the year
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year

d) Description of the rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares
Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of ₹ 10/- per share. All the existing equity shares rank pari passu in all respects including but not limited to
entitlement for dividend, bonus issue and rights issue.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
e) Details of shareholding by promoters

Name of shareholder
Rico Auto Industries Limited
Rasa Autocom Limited

As at
Mar 31, 2022
No. of shares
% of holding
215.20
50.95%
207.20
49.05%
422.40
100%

As at
Mar 31, 2021
No. of shares
% of holding
215.200
50.95%
207.200
49.05%
422.400
100%

f) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company*
March 31, 2022
No. of shares
% of holding
Name of shareholder
Rico Auto Industries Limited
Rasa Autocom Limited

215.20
207.20
422.40

March 31, 2021
No. of shares
% of holding

50.95%
49.05%
100%

215.20
207.20
422.40

50.95%
49.05%
100%

g) The Company has not issued bonus shares, equity shares issued for considerations other than cash and also no shares has been bought back during the period of five years immediately
preceding the reporting period.
* The above information has been furnished as per the shareholders details available with the Company as at respective year ends
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Particulars

18. Revenue from operations*
Sale of products

Other operating revenue
Scrap sales
Export incentive
Export obligation deffered income

For the year ended
Mar 31, 2022

For the year ended
Mar 31, 2021

6,517.73

5,171.50

6,517.73

5,171.50

14.91
20.00
4.23

11.24
9.71
5.12

39.14

26.07

6,556.87

5,197.57

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised costs
-bank deposits
-interest income from loans to related parties
-interest income on security deposits
Insurance claim received
Liabilities no longer required written back
Miscellaneous

2.13
123.34
1.65
0.01
102.57
14.36

12.58
130.78
1.65
46.03
0.52

Total

244.06

191.56

Raw materials
Opening stock
Add : Purchases during the year
Less : Closing stock

135.55
4,460.74
(250.96)

165.03
3,247.53
(135.55)

Raw material and components consumed

4,345.33

3,277.01

197.14

84.12

70.40
70.39
140.79

37.81
21.24
59.05

37.81
21.24
59.05

62.89
56.82
119.71

(81.74)

60.66

525.99
23.15
7.69
24.52
581.35

472.33
23.98
7.51
27.52
531.34

Total
* Refer note 39 for other disclosures
19. Other Income

20. Cost of materials consumed

20A. Purchase of stock-in-trade
21. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock-in-trade
Inventory as at the end of the year
-Finished goods (including stock in transit)
-Stock-in-trade
Inventory as at the beginning of the year
-Finished goods (including stock in transit)
-Stock-in-trade

22. Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity expenses ( refer note 34)
Workmen and staff welfare expenses
Total
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23. Finance costs
Bank charges
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 32)
Total

1.60
66.78
68.38

1.47
68.34
69.81

369.56
4.49
374.05

396.75
8.19
404.94

24. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Total
25. Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Corporate charges
Repair and maintenance
-Machinery
-Building
-Others
Information technology expense
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional*
Communication
Printing and stationery
Foreign currency exchange difference (net)
Freight outward
Provision for warranty
CSR expenditure (Refer Note 29)
Miscellaneous
Total
*Includes payments to auditors on account of:
Audit services
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

125.44
86.00
7.51
4.92
125.40

107.25
72.19
1.20
4.14
5.20
101.38

5.05
3.17
13.41
7.45
17.22
50.50
4.71
2.18
4.73
8.82
10.44
16.07
16.89
509.91

2.40
0.32
10.25
10.71
16.85
33.37
4.63
3.16
0.06
7.76
2.04
18.81
15.75
417.47

9.90
9.90

9.25
9.25

27. Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit of the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit of the year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year plus weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares into equity shares
The following reflects the income and share data used in basic and diluted EPS calculation
(A) Profit attributable to euity shareholders for Basic EPS

591.98

410.77

(B) Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted EPS (in no.)
Nominal value of ordinary shares (in ₹)

422.40
10.00

422.40
10.00

1.40

0.97

Basic / Diluted earnings per share (A/B)

Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the Period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts are in ₹ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
26 Income tax
A The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate of the Company to income tax expense reported in

Year ended March 31, 2022
Amount
%
806.51

Profit before tax

Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate
Impact of CSR expenses
Others
Income tax expenses recognised in the statement of
profit and loss

203.00
4.04
7.44
214.48

25.17%
0.5%
0.92%
26.59%

Year ended March 31, 2021
Amount
%
543.80
136.87
(3.30)
133.57

25.17%
0.0%
(0.61%)
24.56%

* During the year ended 31 March 2020 , the Company elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA of the Income-tax Act,
1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has re-measured its current tax expense
and deferred tax assets basis the rate prescribed in the said section. The impact of this change has been recognised in the statement of profit
& loss for the year.
B Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) in relation to:

For the period ended March 31, 2022
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Other temporary differences
Unrecognised tax

Deferred tax liability
Depreciation

For the period ended March 31, 2021
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefits
Other temporary differences
Unrecognised tax

Deferred tax liability
Depreciation

Opening
balance

Recognised
/(reversed)
through profit
and loss

Recognised
/(reversed) through
OCI/equity

Closing balance

27.23
16.79
8.81
52.83

9.18

-

9.18

-

27.23
25.97
8.81
62.01

60.52
60.52

11.96
11.96

-

72.48
72.48

113.35

21.14

-

134.49

26.02
27.46
53.48

0.92
(10.67)
8.81
(0.94)

23.70
23.70

36.82
36.82

77.18

35.88

0.29
0.29

0.29

As at
31-Mar-22
Defered tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets
Total

134.49
134.49 0

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

27.23
16.79
8.81
52.83

60.52
60.52
113.35

As at
Mar 31, 2021

113.35
113.35
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28. Financial ratios

Ratio

Measurement
unit

Current ratio
Debt-equity ratio

Times
Times

Debt service coverage ratio

Times

Return on equity ratio

Inventory turnover ratio

Numerator

Denominator

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Ratio

Ratio

Change

Remarks

Current liabilities
Total equity

1.70
-

1.53
-

11% Not applicable
Not applicable

Debt service (Interest and lease payments+
principal repayments)

8.62

7.37

17%

Percentage

Current assets
Total debt
[Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings]
Earnings available for debt service [Profit/(loss) after tax +
Depreciation and amortisation+impairment
+finance cost+ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment]
Net profit after tax

12.08%

8.50%

42%

Times

Costs of materials consumed+Purchases of stock-in-trade

Average inventories
[(opening inventories + closing inventories)
/2]
Average trade receivables [(opening trade
receivables +closing trade receivables )/2]

12.31

12.96

-5%

3.71

3.18

17%

Trade receivables turnover ratio Times

Revenue from operations

Average shareholder's equity [(opening
shareholder's equity + closing
shareholder's equity) /2]

Not Applicable
During the current year,
the Company has written
off the aged payables
against which no liability
will arise in future
amounting to INR 102.57
Lakhs
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Trade payables turnover ratio

Times

Purchases + other expenses
(excluding non cash expenses)

Average trade payables [(opening trade
payables +closing trade payables )/2]

Net capital turnover ratio
Net profit ratio

Times

Revenue from operations

Percentage

Net profit after tax

Working capital
[Current assets - Current liabilities]
Revenue from operations

Return on capital employed

Percentage

Earnings before interest and taxes (excluding interest on lease
liabilities)

Net worth + Total debt - Deferred tax asset

Return on investment

Percentage

Interest income on bank deposits

Current and non-current bank deposits

0.63

0.42

48% Increase in ratio is
majorly due to increased
operations
in
comparison to previous
year
-12%
Not Applicable

5.52

6.29

9.03%

7.89%

14%

16.65%

11.59%

44%

Not Applicable

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

4.25%

7.19%

-41%

Increase
is
majorly
because of:
1). Decrease in interest
cost
2). Liabilities written off
during the year
Decrease is
majorly
because of decrease in
deposits lying with banks
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29 Details of Corporate social responsibility expenditure:
For the year ended
March 31, 2022
16.07
In Cash

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
18.81
In Cash

Amount spent during the year
(i) Construction/acquisition of asset
(ii) on purposes other than (i) above
(Amount excess spent)

16.07
-

18.81
-

Details related to spent
(i) Contribution to Public Trust
(ii) Contribution to Charitable Trust
(ii) Others

16.07
-

18.81

Particulars
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

30 Disclosure of transactions with struck off companies
The Company did not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section
560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year.
31 Additional regulatory information not disclosed elsewhere in the financial information

a) The Company does not have any benami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for
holding any benami property, under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.
b) The Company does not have any charge which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
c) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current and previous financial year.
d) The Company has not advanced or provided loan to or invested funds in any entity(ies) including foreign entities (Intermediaries) or
to any other person(s), with the understanding that the intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
e) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,
f) The Company has not undertaken any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or
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32. Leases
A. Leases where the Company is a lessee
The Company has entered into lease arrangement for office and factory building that are renewable on periodic basis with the approval of both the lessor and
lessee. The term of the lease is 9 years. The Coimpany does not have any lease commitments towards variable rent as per the Contract.
(i). Lease liabilities
Lease liability included in balance sheet

As at
Mar 31, 2022
646.94
65.83

Non-current
Current

As at
Mar 31, 2021
712.76
53.22

Note: Refer below for maturity analysis of lease liabilities.
(ii). Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss
For the year ended
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in
the measurement of the lease liability
Net impact on statement of profit and loss

For the year ended

Mar 31, 2022
92.63
66.78
-

Mar 31, 2021
92.63
71.34
1.20

159.41

165.17

(iii). Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flow

Payment of lease liabilities- principal
Payment of lease liabilities- interest
Total cash outflows

For the year ended

For the year ended

Mar 31, 2022

Mar 31, 2021

53.22
66.78
120.00

48.66
71.34
120.00

As at
31 March 2022
127.50
740.03
92.58
960.10

As at
31 March 2021
120.00
708.83
251.28
1,080.10

Contractual cash flows (maturity analysis of lease liabilities)

Less than one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total
(iv). Set out below are the carrying amount of right-to-use assets and the movement during the year
Particulars

Amount
795.06
(92.63)
702.43
(92.63)
609.80

Carrying amount as at April 01, 2020
Additions
Reversal/termination
Depreciation
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2021
Additions
Reversal/termination
Depreciation
Carrying amount as at March 31, 2022
(v). Set out below are the carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movement during the year
As at
Mar 31, 2022
765.98
66.79
(120.00)
712.77

Particulars
Carrying amount in the beginning of the year
Accretion of interest
Repayments
Carrying amount at the end of the year
The effective interest rate for the lease liabilities is 9% (Mar 31, 2021: 9%) with maturity in FY 2028-29
(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at
Mar 31, 2021
814.64
71.34
(120.00)
765.98
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33. Related party transactions
I.

Related parties:
(Nature of related party and relationship)

i.

Holding company
(a) Rico Auto Industries Limited

ii.

Fellow subsidiaries
(a) Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
(b) Rasa Autocom Limited
(c) Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited
(d) AAN Engineering Industries Limited
Other Related Parties (Entity in which KMP exercise significant influence) with whom there are
transactions during the year or balances as at year end
(a) Rico Castings Limited
(b) Kapbros Engineering Industries Limited

iii.

Key Managerial Personnel**
(a) Kaushalendra Verma – Managing Director (from July 1, 2019)
(b) Sanjit Kumar Jana – Chief Financial Officer (from June 26, 2019) #
(c) Brajesh Kumar – Company Secretary (from June 16, 2020) #
# As per section 203 of the Act, definition of Key Managerial Personnel includes Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary.
** As the liabilities for the gratuity and compensated absence are provided on an actuarial basis for the Company
as a whole rather than each individual employee, the amounts pertaining specifically to KMP are not known and
hence, not included in KMP compensation. Gratuity and compensated absence are included in the year of
payment

II.

Transactions with related parties
Particulars

A

B
E

F

G

Rico Auto Industries Limited
Purchase of raw materials and components
Corporate charges
Management service provided
Advance to supplier
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Sale of finished goods
Dividend paid
Loan repayment received
Interest income
Rasa Autocom Limited
Dividend paid
Rico Castings Limited
Loan given
Interest income
Kapbros Engineering Industries Limited
Loan given
Interest income
Loan repayment received
AAN Engineering Industries Limited
Loan given
Interest income

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

582.24
129.33
82.83
58.00
38.85
215.20
-

460.10
119.63
70.74
2.88
57.32
215.20
1,500.00
58.92

207.20

207.20

88.00

1,100.00
40.88

11.31
300.00

300.00
16.24
-

24.03

300.00
14.66
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H

III.

Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel
Kaushalendra Verma
Sanjit Kumar Jana
Brajesh Kumar

B

C

D

45.11
27.95
4.14

Balances with related parties
Particulars

A

48.07
29.23
2.07

Rico Auto Industries Limited
Trade receivables
Trade payables
Rico Castings Limited
Loan
Interest accrued on loans
Kapbros Engineering industries Limited
Loan
Interest accrued on loans
AAN Engineering Industries Limited
Loan
Interest accrued on loans

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

104.10
220.23

104.88
192.05

1,100.00
21.70

1,100.00
20.07

4.95

300.00
5.47

300.00
11.99

300.00
13.57

34. Employee benefits
(I) Defined benefit obligations (gratuity)
The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded).
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, gratuity is computed as 15 days salary, for every
completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months and is payable on retirement/termination/resignation.
The benefit vests on the employee after completing 5 years of service.
The Company makes provision of such gratuity liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as
per the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from
actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit plan is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-employment benefit plan.
The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are
based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.
The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
and the amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the gratuity.
(i)

Net employees benefit expense recognized in employee cost:Particulars
Current service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Defined benefit cost included in statement of profit and loss

As at
March
31, 2022
5.74
1.95
7.69

As at
March
31, 2021
5.99
1.52
7.51
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As at March 31,
2022
0.13
0.13

Particulars
Change in experience adjustments
Total remeasurement Loss recognised in OCI

As at March 31,
2021
1.13
1.13

(ii) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit
liability and its components.
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation:Particulars
Balance at the beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
- changes in demographic assumptions
- changes in financial assumptions
- experience adjustments
Benefit paid
Balance at the end of the year

As
at
March 31, 2021
26.83
5.74
1.94

As at
March
31, 2021
21.78
5.99
1.52

0.13
(6.45)
28.19

(1.13)
(1.32)
26.83

(iii) Actuarial assumptions
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company’s plans are shown below:
As
at
March 31, 2022
7.25%
5.00%
5.00%

Particulars
Discount rate
Salary increase rate
Attrition rate

As at
March
31, 2021
7.00%
5.00%
5.00%

Note:
The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.
(iv) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.
Assumptions
Sensitivity Level

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Discount rate (1.00% movement)

(2.35)

2.73

2.29

(2.67)

Future salary growth (1.00% movement)

2.76

(2.42)

(2.70)

(2.35)

Attrition rate (1.00% movement)

0.27

(0.32)

(0.21)

(0.26)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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(v) The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Within next 12 months

2.18

1.81

Between 2 and 5 years

5.38

3.82

Beyond 5 years

20.62

21.19

(vi) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 16 years
(March 31, 2021: 16 years).
(vii) Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period is ₹ 7.29 lakhs (March 31, 2021 ₹ 6.90 lakhs)
(II) Defined contribution plan
Contribution to defined contribution plans included under head ‘Contribution to provident fund and employee state
insurance (ESI) under Note 22 ‘Employee benefit expenses’
For the year ended
March 31, 2022
23.15

Particulars
Provident fund and ESI

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
23.98

(III) Other long term benefits plans
Other long term benefit plans represent the compensated absences provided to the employees of the Company.
Actuarial valuation has been done with the following assumptions:
Particulars
Discount rate
Salary growth rate
Mortality
Retirement age (years)
Withdrawal rate

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
7.25%
5.00%
IALM 2012-14
58.00
5.00%

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
7.00%
5.00%
IALM 2012-14
58.00
5.00%

35. Financial instruments
i. Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by category are as follows:
Particulars

Financial assets
Non-current
Loans
Investments
Other financial assets
Current
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Total financial assets at amortised cost

As at March 31,
2022
Amortised cost*

As at March 31,
2021
Amortised cost*

1186.11
951.00
38.94

1,533.33
950.00
37.29

1905.16
168.55
213.89
54.05
4,517.70

1,633.14
210.69
166.67
49.75
4,580.87
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Financial liabilities
Non-current
Lease liabilities
Current
Lease Liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost

646.93

712.76

65.83
1,386.91
182.55
2,282.22

53.22
1,318.05
73.81
2,157.84

* The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at
amortized cost in the balance sheet approximates their fair value as at reporting date.
ii. Fair value hierarchy
The categories used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted price in active market.
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Discounted cash flow method is used to capture the present value of the expected future economic benefits
that will flow to the Company.
Note: There are no assets in the Company as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 which are measured at fair
value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive income (in any of the above mentioned
hierarchy levels).
36. Capital management
The capital structure of the Company consists of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company which comprises issued share capital and accumulated reserves/losses disclosed in
the Statement of Changes in Equity. The Company’s capital management objective is to achieve an optimal weighted
average cost of capital while continuing to safeguard the Company’s ability to meet its liquidity requirements
(including its commitments in respect of capital expenditure). The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
37. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Risk management framework (see 37(i));
- Credit risk (see 37(ii));
- Liquidity risk (see 37(iii)); and
- Market risk (see 37(iv)).
i. Risk management framework
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are
reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The management of Company monitors
compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The management also assisted in its oversight
role through the periodical internal audits carried out by the internal auditors.
ii. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed in line with the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed through internal evaluation which takes into
account the financial parameters, past experience with the counterparty and current economic/market trends.
Individual credit limits are thus defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored.
Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the
Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made with banks.
Loans and other financial assets measured at amortized cost
Other financial assets measured at amortized cost includes loans and advances to related parties and employees,
security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability
of such amounts continuously.
Given below is the ageing of trade receivable and loans:
Trade receivables
Particulars
Outstanding for more than six months
Others
Loans
Particulars
Non-current
Current

As at
March 31, 2022
25.18
1,879.98

As at
March 31, 2021
1.30
1,631.84

As at
March 31, 2022
1,186.11
213.89

As at
March 31, 2021
1,533.33
166.67

iii. Liquidity risk
The Company’s treasury department monitors liquidity on an ongoing basis through rolling cash flow forecasts. The
Company’s objective is to maintain timely and adequate funding for its operations.
Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments.
Particulars
Trade payables
Lease liabilities
Other financial
liabilities
Total

As on March 31, 2022
Less than 1 - 3
1 year
years
1,386.91
65.83
282.34

More than
3 years
364.59

Total
1,386.91
712.76

As on March 31, 2021
Less than 1 - 3 More than
1 year
years
3 years
1,318.50
53.22
239.93
472.83

Total
1,318.05
765.98

182.56

-

-

182.56

73.81

-

-

73.81

1,635.3

282.34

364.59

2,282.23

1,445.53

239.93

472.83

2,157.84
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iv. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as
equity. The Company’s treasury department is entrusted with managing the overall market risks in line with the
Company’s established risk management policies which are approved by the Board.
a) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to
the Company’s operating or financing activities.
Unhedged foreign currency exposure

Particulars

Currency

Trade payables
Trade receivables

US Dollar
Euro

Year ending 31 March 2022
Amount
Exchange Amount
in foreign rate
currency
0.33
75.81
25.10
3.12
84.66
264.40

Cash
Cash#

Korean Won
Euro

2.04
0.00

0.06541
84.66

0.13
0.00

(Amount in lakhs)
Year ended 31 March 2021
Amount in Exchange Amount
foreign
rate
currency
0.09
74.06
6.73
2.02
84.90
171.89
2.04
0.00

0.06541
84.90

0.13
0.00

# Amount represented in ₹ 0.00 are below the rounding off norms adopted by the Company.
Impact on profit and loss account on account of change in currency –
For the year ended March 31, 2022
Currency

Net receivable

Sensitivity
to
increase of 1%

Sensitivity
to
decrease of 1%

US Dollar
Euro
Korean Won

(25.10)
264.60
0.13

(0.25)
2.64
0.00

0.25
(2.64)
(0.00)

Currency

Net receivable

Sensitivity
to
increase of 1%

Sensitivity
to
decrease of 1%

US Dollar
Euro
Korean Won

(6.73)
171.90
0.13

(0.07)
1.72
0.00

0.07
(1.72)
(0.00)

For the year ended March 31, 2021

b) Interest rate risk
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk, as the Company does not have any borrowings.
38. Capital and other commitments
At March 31, 2022, the Company has ₹ 390.39 lakhs commitments (March 31, 2021: ₹ 575.01 lakhs) for contracts
remaining to be executed on capital account.

39. Segment reporting
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The business activity of the company predominantly falls within a single reportable business segment as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 – ‘Operating Segments’.
Information about geographical area is given below:

Year ended March 31, 2022
Revenue from external customers
(gross)

Year ended March 31, 2021
Revenue from external customers
(gross)

India

Outside India

Total

5,943.48

613.39

6,556.87

India

Outside India

Total

4,721.57

476.00

5,197.57

The Company not holds any asset outside India.
40. Revenue
a. Disaggregated revenue information
The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point of time in the following major product lines and
geographical regions:
Segments
Auto ancillary products
Total revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue by geography
India
Outside India
Total revenue from contracts with customers

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
6,517.73
6517.73

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
5,171.50
5,171.50

5,943.48
613.39
6,556.87

4, 721.57
476.00
5,197.57

As at March 31,
2022
1,905.16

As at March 31,
2022
1,633.14

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
-

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
15.12

b. Contract balances
Particulars
Trade receivable
c. Right of return assets and refund liabilities
Particulars
Raw material indexation and giveback benefits

d. Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
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Particulars

For the year
ended March 31,
2022
6320.45

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustment: RM indexation and giveback benefits
Revenue from contract with customers

6320.45

For the year ended
March 31, 2021
5,061.12
15.12
5,076.23

41. As at March 31, 2022, the Company has investment in equity shares of Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited amounting to
₹ 950.00 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ₹ 950.00), accounted as per requirements of Ind AS 27, Separate Financial
Statements, at cost. In accordance with Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets", such investment is considered as a
separate cash generating unit (CGU) for the purpose of impairment review. Management periodically assesses
whether there is an indication that such investment may be impaired. For investment, where impairment indicators
exists, management compares the carrying amount of such investment with its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is value in use of the investment computed based upon discounted cash flow projections
During the year, for long term interests in the subsidiary, the Company has considered it appropriate to undertake
the impairment assessment based on certain indicators, with reference to the latest business plan. Based on
management’s impairment assessment, recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount of long-term
interests and hence, no impairment is recognized.
42. Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities
As per Ind AS 7- “Statement of cash flows”, entities are required to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirements.
The adoption of the amendment does not have any material impact on the financial statements; accordingly, the
reconciliation is not disclosed.
43. There are no reportable subsequent events after the balance sheet date.
44. Previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s classification.
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FINANCIALS
OF
RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
FOR THE FY 2021-22

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(formerly Metalart Friction Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipments & Intangible assets
(b) Capital Work-in-Progress
(d) Deferred tax Assets(net)
(e) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets
(d) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other Equity
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises &
small enterprises
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than msme
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Short Term Provisions
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(c) Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

Rahool Adlakha
(Partner)
Membership No. 083788
Place : Gurugram
Dated : May 28, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

[Rs. In Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2021

3
4
5
6

119.76
0.29
0.57
6.34
126.96

60.20
2.04
6.34
68.58

7

42.95

19.04

8
9
10
11

81.81
16.81
3.88
1.60
147.05

54.74
7.85
0.21
81.84

274.01

150.42

12
13

109.00
90.85
199.85

1.00
52.99
53.99

14

6.97
6.97

3.10
3.10

15
16

10.97

43.37

13.74
27.17
7.33
0.14
2.52
5.32
67.19
274.01

10.25
8.26
1.66
23.41
6.38
93.33
150.42

17
18
19
20

1 - 40

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Amit Mangla
(Director)
(DIN: 08098974)

Om Prakash Aggarwal
(Director)
(DIN: 01537211)

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(formerly Metalart Friction Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
Notes
Revenue
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue
Expenses
(a) Cost of material consumed
(b) Changes in inventories of FG & WIP
(c) Other manufacturing expenses
(d) Employee benefits expense
(e) Finance costs
(f) Depreciation and amortization expense
(g) Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional items
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax expenses
Current tax
Deferred tax
Total Tax expense

Year ended
March 31, 2022

[Rs. In Lakhs]
Year ended
March 31, 2021

21
22

301.41
2.23
303.64

403.10
0.38
403.47

23
24
25
26
27
3
28

131.77
(17.93)
16.26
83.40
0.16
8.20
29.89
251.75

151.61
0.05
23.40
56.20
0.03
13.21
35.94
280.44

51.89
51.89

123.03
123.03

29
11.26
1.80
13.06

Profit/(Loss) for the year (A)
Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

38.83

23.41
(1.00)
22.41
100.62

(1.32)
(1.32)
0.33

0.11
0.11
(0.03)

Total other comprehensive income for the year (B)

(0.99)

0.08

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (A + B)

37.84

100.70

37.80
37.80

100.62
100.62

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share Rs. 10]
Earnings per share:(a) Basic
(b) Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of the financial statements.
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Rahool Adlakha
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Dated : May 28, 2022

Om Prakash Aggarwal
(Director)
(DIN: 01537211)
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[Rs. In Lakhs]
Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars
A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax
Extraordinary Items
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance Costs
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
- (Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
- (Increase)/decrease in inventories
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
- (Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (current)
- (Increase)/decrease in other current assets
- Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
- Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (current)
- Increase/(decrease) in current provisions
- Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash Generated From operations
Income tax paid (net)
Cash Generated From operations before extraordinary Items
Extraordinary Items
Net Cash From/(used in) Operating Activities (A)

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

For the year ended
march 31, 2021

51.89

123.03
-

8.20
0.16
(1.32)
58.93

13.21
0.03
0.11
136.38

(23.91)
(27.07)
(3.88)
(1.39)
3.87
22.40
0.14
(27.52)
(57.36)
(57.36)
1.57

5.00
3.38
(54.56)
(0.11)
(0.05)
(0.50)
1.75
0.10
0.00
(66.02)
(111.01)
(111.01)
25.37

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Property, plant & equipments
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities (B)

(68.07)
(68.07)

(5.55)
0.08
(5.47)

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Cash From Equity
Loan Repaid
Finance cost paid
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (C)

(32.40)
108.00
(0.16)
75.44

(12.19)
(0.03)
(12.22)

8.94
7.89
16.83

7.69
0.20
7.89

0.01

0.45

16.80
16.81

7.41
7.86

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
D. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
With banks On Current Accounts and Fixed Deposits
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No. 10 & 11 )
In terms of our report of even date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

Rahool Adlakha
(Partner)
Membership No. 083788
Place : Gurugram
Dated : May 28, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Amit Mangla
(Director)
(DIN: 08098974)

Om Prakash Aggarwal
(Director)
(DIN: 01537211)

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(formerly Metalart Friction Private Limited)
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

[Rs. In Lakhs]
a. Equity Share Capital
Balance at April 1, 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2021
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2022

Amount
1.00
1.00
108.00
109.00

b. Other Equity

Balance at April 1, 2020
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Payment of Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Balance at March 31, 2021
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Payment of Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Balance at March 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

Rahool Adlakha
(Partner)
Membership No. 083788
Place : Gurugram
Dated : May 28, 2022

Reserve & Surplus
General
Retained
Reserve
Earnings
(47.68)
100.60
0.07
52.99
52.99
38.84
(0.98)
90.85
90.85
-

Total
(47.68)
100.60
0.07
52.99
52.99
38.84
(0.98)
90.85
90.85
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RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Note - 1: Corporate Information
The Company was incorporated as Metalart Friction Private Limited with the Registrar of
Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana vide CIN: U29100HR2018PTC073338 dated 29th March, 2018.
On 19th March 2021, the name of the company was changed to Rico Friction Technologies Private
Limited. The main objects of the company are to carry on the Business of manufacturing automobile
parts. During the year company has converted into public limited company.

Note - 2: Basis of Preparation and Presentation
2.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provisions of the Act.
Upto the year ended 31st March, 2019, the Company prepared the financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, which includes standards notified under
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and other relevant provisions of the Act.
These are the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to the Ind AS is
1st April, 2019.
2.2 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period as explained in the
accounting policies below.
2.3 Historical Cost convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis
except for certain assets and liabilities as stated in the respective policies, which have been
measured at fair value.
2.4 Current / Non-Current classification
The assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. Cash or
cash equivalent is treated as current, unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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2.5 Functional and Presentation currency
Items included in the Financial Statements of the Company are measured and presented using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“Functional
Currency”). Indian Rupee is the functional Currency of the Company.
2.6 Rounding off amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the
nearest lakhs (upto two decimal places) as per the requirements of Schedule III of the Act unless
otherwise stated.
2.7 Key Accounting Estimates and Judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.
Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies, as well as estimates and
assumptions that have the most significant effect to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are included in the following notes:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

Measurement of defined benefit obligations;
Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets;
Provision and contingent liabilities
Carrying values of inventories; and
Recognition of deferred tax

2.8 Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Cost includes all expenses, direct and indirect, specifically attributable to its
acquisition and bringing it to its working condition for its intended use. Incidental expenditure
pending allocation and attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets is allocated/capitalized with
the related fixed assets. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction and is carried at cost.

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(formerly Metalart Friction Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are credited/debited to profit or loss.
b. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written-down method on a prorata basis from the date in which each asset is ready to put to use to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as per prescribed Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013.
Estimated useful life of assets is as follows which is based on technical evaluation of the useful
lives of the assets:
Particulars
Estimated useful life
Plant & Machinery *
Office equipment
Furniture & Fixtures
Computers
Electrical Installation

15 Years
5 Years
10 Years
3 Years
10-15 Years

[* Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above
best represent the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence, the
useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under part C of
schedule II of the companies Act, 2013]
The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
c. Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Initial
recognition of intangible assets is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized on Straight Line value method over the estimated useful
economic life of 5 years.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
d. Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
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estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
e. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is computed on a
weighted average basis. Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of
purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
f. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shortterm deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.
g. Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
o Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
o Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period or each case.
h. Financial Instruments
Recognition and initial measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are
measured initially at fair value.
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
➢ amortised cost;
➢ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - debt investment;
➢ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or
➢ Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:
▪ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and
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▪ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
▪ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
▪ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects
on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income
for equity instruments which are not held for trading.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.
De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
Financial Liabilities
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities, other than derivative
liabilities, are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an expected 'loss event') and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial re-organisations and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
i. Provisions & Contingencies
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on management estimate required to
settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
j. Revenue Recognition
Sale of Goods
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration expected to receive in exchange for those goods. The arrangements with
the customers generally creates single performance obligation, which is satisfied at a point of time,
when the obligation is discharged i.e. on sale of goods.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duties.
Expected sales returns, volume and cash discounts are accounted as reduction of revenue basis the
estimate of customers' future purchases / customers' future sales to downstream customers in the
value-chain. Any changes in the estimated amount of obligations for discounts/incentives are
recognized prospectively in the period in which the change occurs.
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Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
k. Expenditures
Expenses are accounted on accrual basis.
l. Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include salaries, wages, provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment towards unavailed leave, compensated absences and other terminal benefits.
i.

Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
within the operating cycle after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
services are recognised in the period in which the related services are rendered and are
measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid.

ii.

Other Long-term employee benefit obligations
Compensated absences
Long term employee benefits such as compensated absences and long service awards are
charged to statement of profit and loss on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary as at the year-end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the
statement of profit and loss during the year in which they occur.

iii.

Post-employment obligations
Defined benefit plans
Liability for defined benefit plans i.e. gratuity is determined based on the actuarial valuation
carried out by an independent actuary as at the year-end. As these liabilities are relatively long
term in nature, the actuarial assumptions take in account the requirements of the relevant Ind
AS coupled with a long term view of the underlying variables / trends, wherever required.
Service cost and net interest cost on the defined benefit liabilities/assets are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as employee benefit expense. Gains and losses on measurement of
defined benefits liabilities arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience
adjustments are recognised in the other comprehensive income and are included in retained
earnings in the balance sheet.
Defined Contribution plans
The Company has defined contribution plans under which the company's pays fixed contribution
into fund established under the Employee's State Insurance Act, 1948 and Employee Provident
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Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, respectively. The contributions recognised in respect of
defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss every year. The
company has no further payment obligations both legal & Constructive, once the contributions
have been paid.
Termination benefits
A liability for the termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Company can no
longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit.
m. Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
i. Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
ii.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and incurred tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws
in India, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off
against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future
economic benefit associated with asset will be realised.
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iii.

Current and Deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the income
taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

n.

Operating Leases
I. As a lessee
The Company leases assets primarily consists of office/factory premises which are of short term
lease with the term of twelve months or less and low value leases, the Company recognizes the
lease payments as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on the straight line basis over the
period of lease.
II. As a Lessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as finance lease or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased assets are classified as Finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating
lease.

o.

Cash flow Statement
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term balances, as defined above.

p. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year/period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive potential equity shares,
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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[Rs. In Lakhs]
3. Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in Progress.

Carrying Amount of

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31,
2021

Plant and Machinery
Dies & Mould
Furniture and Fixtures
Office Equipments
Computer
Leasehold Improvement(Building)

109.61
0.64
3.38
2.26
0.10
3.78

50.34
0.23
3.69
5.83
0.10
-

Total

119.76

60.20

Cost or deemed cost

Particulars
Balance at 1st April, 2020
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at 31st March, 2021
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at 31st March, 2022

Plant and
Machinery
71.89
1.16
-0.10
72.95
63.23
136.19

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Particulars
Plant and
Machinery
Balance at 1st April, 2020
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at 31st March, 2021
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at 31st March, 2022
Carrying amount
Particulars

Balance at 1st April, 2020
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Depreciation Adjustment
Balance at 31st March, 2021
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Depreciation Adjustment
Balance at 31st March, 2022

Office
Equipments

11.67
10.97
-0.02
22.62
3.96
26.58

Plant and
Machinery

0.73
0.73
0.58
1.32

6.67
6.67
6.67

Electrical
Installation
2.66
4.39
7.05
7.05

Leasehold
Computers Improvement(Build
ing)
0.67
0.67
3.97
0.67
3.97

Leasehold
Office
Furniture
Electrical
Improvement(Build
Equipments
and Fixture Installation
Computers ing)
0.31
1.69
0.63
0.38
0.19
1.29
0.58
0.18
0.50
2.98
1.21
0.56
0.18
0.31
3.57
0.19
0.68

Office
Equipments
60.22
1.16
-0.10
10.95
50.34
63.23
3.96
109.61

Furniture
and Fixture

0.42
0.19
0.23
0.58
0.18
0.64

3.29

Furniture
and Fixture
4.98
1.29
3.69
0.31
3.38

4.79

Electrical
Installation
2.03
4.39
0.58
5.83
3.57
2.26

0.56

0.19

Leasehold
Computers Improvement(Build
ing)
0.28
0.18
0.10
3.97
0.19
0.10
3.78

Total
82.62
5.55
(0.10)
88.07
67.78
155.85

Total
14.69
13.21
-0.02
27.87
8.22
36.09

Total

67.93
5.55
-0.10
13.19
60.20
67.78
8.22
119.76

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(formerly Metalart Friction Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
As at
March 31, 2022
4 Capital Work in Progress
Cost
Opening Balance
Additions
Transfers to property, plant and equipment
Closing Balance

CWIP ageing schedule:
Projects in progress
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

5 Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (net)
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of :
Depreciation
Less:Deferred tax (asset) arising on account of :
Employee Benefits
Net Deferred tax liabilities/(assets)

For the period ended March 31, 2022
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Provision for employee and others liabilities
deductible on actual payment
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
For the period ended March 31, 2021
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) in relation to:

Property, plant and equipment, investment
property and intangible assets
Provision for employee and others liabilities
deductible on actual payment
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
6 Other non current assets
Capital Advances
Total

[Rs. In Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2021

67.78
(67.49)
0.29

-

0.29
0.29

-

2.36

0.84

(1.79)
0.57

1.20
2.04

Recognized/
reversed
through
OCI/Equity

Closing
balances

-

Opening
balance

Recognized/
reversed
through profit
and loss

0.84

1.52

-

2.36

1.20

(3.32)

0.33

(1.79)

2.04

(1.80)

0.33

0.57

Opening
balance

Recognized/
reversed
through profit
and loss

Recognized/
reversed
through
OCI/Equity

0.08

0.76

-

0.84

0.99

0.24

-0.03

1.20

1.07

1.00

-0.03

2.04

6.34
6.34

6.34
6.34

Closing
balances
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As at
March 31, 2022

[Rs. In Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2021

7 Inventories
Raw Material & Components (at cost)
Finished goods (at lower of cost or net realizable value)
Stores & Spares (at cost)
Total

15.29
26.68
0.98
42.95

10.29
8.75
19.04

8 Trade receivables
(Unsecured, Undisputed,considered good)
: Due to related parties
: Other debts
Total

81.81
81.81

14.11
40.63
54.74

81.81
81.81

54.74
54.74

0.01

0.45

16.80
16.81

7.41
7.86

10 Other current financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Securities
Total

3.88
3.88

-

11 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid Expenses
Advance to Supplier
Employee Imprest
Total

1.41
0.06
0.13
1.60

0.06
0.06
0.09
0.21

Ageing of Trade Receivables
Not Due
Less than 6 months
6 months- 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than 3 years

9 Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
In current accounts
Total

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
[Rs. In Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2022
12 Share capital
a) Authorized
11,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each with Voting right
(Previous Year 1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- )

110.00

10.00

110.00

10.00

109.00
109.00

1.00
1.00

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

b) Issued, subscribed and paid-up
10,90,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid-up with Voting Right
(Previous Year 10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- )

c) Reconciliation of number of equity & preference shares outstanding
Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year

No. of
shares
Amount

0.10
1.00

Movement during the year

No. of
shares
Amount

Outstanding at the end of the year

No. of
shares
Amount

0.10
1.00

0.10
1.00

10.80
108.00

-

-

10.90
109.00

0.10
1.00

0.10
1.00

c) Shares held by holding /ultimate holding company and /or their subsidiaries /associates

Nos.

Rico Auto Industries Limited ,[ Holding Co.]
763000 equity shares @ Rs 10 each fully paid up
(Previous year- 7000 equity shares @10 each fully
paid up)

Amount
(Rs.)

Nos.

Amount (Rs.)

7.63

76.30

0.07

0.70

7.63

76.30

0.07

0.70

d) Description of the rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares, having par value of Rs.10/– per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled for one
vote per share and has a right to receive dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors subject to the necessary approval from
the shareholders.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
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As at
March 31, 2022
e) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company
Equity Shares

[Rs. In Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up
Rico Auto Industries Limited

No. of shares
% of holding

7.63
70%

0.07
70%

Mrs. Kanchan Mangla

No. of shares
% of holding

1.635
15%

0.015
15%

1.635
15%

0.015
15%

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Year ended
March 31, 2021

No. of shares
% of holding
% Change of change in holding

1.635
15%
0%

0.015
15%
0%

No. of shares
% of holding
% Change of change in holding

1.635
15%
0%

0.015
15%
0%

52.93
38.84
91.76

(47.68)
100.60
52.92

0.08
(0.99)
-0.91
90.85

0.00
0.07
0.07
52.99

5.50
1.47
6.97

3.10
3.10

10.97
10.97

43.37
43.37

13.74
21.72
-

10.25
-

No. of shares
% of holding
The above information is furnished as per the shareholders register as on March 31, 2022.

Mr. Amit Mangla

f) Shareholding patter of promoters
Name of Promoter
Equity Shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up
Mrs. Kanchan Mangla

Mr. Amit Mangla

13 Other equity
Retained earnings
As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Profit/(Loss) transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss
Net retained earnings
Other comprehensive income
As per last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Closing balance
Total Other Equity
14 Long term provisions
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note no. 31)
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note no. 31)
Total
15 Short term borrowings
Unsecured*
From Directors

* Loan Received from Directors as interest free loan and is repayable on demand.
16 Trade payables
Due to Micro & Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 33)
Others
Due to related parties (Refer Note No. 32)

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
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As at
March 31, 2022
5.45
40.91

Other Payables

[Rs. In Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2021
8.26
18.51

Ageing as on 31.03.2022

Particulars

(i) MSME **
(ii) Others **
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv) Disputed dues- Others

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
payment
More
than 3
2-3 years
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years
years
13.74
1.84
25.33
-

Total

13.74
27.17
40.91

Ageing as on 31.03.2021
Particulars

Not Due

(i) MSME **
(ii) Others **
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME
(iv) Disputed dues- Others
17 Other current financial liabilities
Current maturities of long term loans
Current Maturities of lease liability
Employee Benefits Payable
18 Short term provisions
Provision for Gratuity (Refer note no. 31)
Provision for compensated absences (Refer note no. 31)
19 Current Tax Assets /(Liabilities)
Provision for income tax
Less :Advance tax & tds
Total
20 Other current liabilities
Statutory Liabilities
Others

Outstanding for following periods from due date of
More
than 3
2-3 years
Less than 1 year 1-2 years
years
10.25
8.26
-

Total

10.25
8.26
-

7.33
7.33

1.66
1.66

0.08
0.06
0.14

-

11.68
(9.16)
2.52

23.41
23.41

4.77
0.55
5.32

6.38
6.38
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For the year ended
March 31, 2022
21 Revenue from operations
Sales of Products
Sale of Scrap & Others
22 Other income
Balance Written-off
Cash Discount

23 Cost of material consumed
Raw Materials & Components
Opening Stock
Add : Purchase during the year
Less : Closing Stock
Raw Material & Components Consumed
24 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
(a) Work-in-Process
Opening Stock
Closing Stock
Less : Provision for diminution - WIP
(b) Finished Goods
Opening Stock
Closing Stock

Total
25 Other manufacturing expenses
Consumption of Stores & Spares
Electrical & Mechanical Spares Consumed
Others Stores & Spares Consumed
Sub Contractor Expenses
Power & Fuel
DG Hire Charges

26 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Employee welfare and insurance expenses

27 Finance costs
Interest expenses on :Interest on Leases
Interest expenses on Bank Borrowings
Interest expenses on Other Borrowings
Other borrowing costs
28 Other expenses
Rent
Repairs & Maintenance

[Rs. In Lakhs]
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

301.41
301.41

403.10
403.10

2.22
0.01
2.23

0.38
0.38

10.29
136.77
15.29
131.77

13.61
148.29
10.29
151.61

-

-

8.75
26.68
-17.93

8.80
8.75
0.05

-17.93

0.05

2.35
2.40
11.51
16.26

0.19
5.10
17.00
1.11
23.40

78.21
4.65
0.54
83.40

50.28
4.44
1.48
56.20

0.15
0.01
0.16

0.01
0.02
0.03

21.96

24.46
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- Buildings
- Others
Insurance
Rates & Taxes
Travelling & Conveyance
Legal and Professional
Payment to Auditors*
Freight and forwarding
Vehicle running and maintenance expenses
Line Rejection and re-work charges
Provision for doubtful debts
Miscellaneous Expenses

* Payment to the auditors comprises :
Statutory Audit (including limited reviews)
Tax Audit
Others

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
0.97
0.84
2.84
0.20
0.83
1.33
0.02
0.90
29.89

[Rs. In Lakhs]
For the year ended
March 31, 2021
2.57
0.53
0.86
0.60
2.97
3.95
35.94

1.33
1.33

0.60
0.60

11.26
11.26

23.41
23.41

Deferred tax
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (net)

1.80

(1.00)

Total Deferred tax

1.80

(1.00)

13.06

22.41

29 Income Tax Expenses
(a) Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Current tax on profit for the Year
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods on completion of assessment
Total Current tax

Total Income Tax Expense

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by India’s tax rate
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations before income tax expense

51.89

123.03

Tax at India's tax rate of 25.168% (PY 25.168%)

13.06

30.96

Tax effect of Other Adjustments

13.06

(8.55)
22.41
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[Rs. In Lakhs]
Note - 30: Earning per share (EPS)
Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India:31st March, 2022
31st March, 2021
Net Profit/(Loss) as per Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs. in Lakhs)
38.83
100.62
1.03
1
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (Nos. in
lakhs)
Number of shares - Diluted (Nos.in lakhs)
1.03
1
Basic Earning Per share (Rs.)
37.80
100.62
Diluted Earning Per share (Rs.)
37.80
100.62

Note - 31: Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
31st March, 2022
31st March, 2021
a) Defined contribution plans
Provident fund and other funds:
Employer’s contribution to provident fund
4.65
4.44
b) Defined benefit plans
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, as defined benefit plan. The gratuity plan
provides for a lump sum payment to the employees at the time of separation from the service on completion of vested year of
employment i.e. five years. The liability of gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial valuation as at the end of each financial year.

I (i)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

Gratuity Plan:
Change in Present Value of benefit obligations :
Present value of obligation at the beginning (A)
Current Service Cost (B)
Interest Cost (C )
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (D)
Benefits Paid (E)
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses (F)
Present value of obligations at the end(F=A+B+C+D+E+F)
Change in plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning (A)
Expected return on plan assets (B)
Employer's Contributions (C )
Benefits Paid (D)
Actuarial Gain (E)
Fair value of plan assets as on at the end (F=A+B+C+D+E)
Net Liabilities/ (Assets) ( i-ii )
Net gratuity cost for the year ended:
In Statement of Profit & Loss A/c
Current Service Cost (A)
Interest cost (B)
Expected return on plan assets (C )
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses (D)
In Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognised in the year (E)
Net gratuity cost (E=A+B+C+D+E)

3.11
0.94
0.21
1.32
5.58

1.41
1.72
0.10
(0.11)
3.11

5.58

3.11

0.94
0.21
-

1.72
0.10
-

1.32
2.47

(0.11)
1.70

Bifurcation of Projected Benefit Obligation at the end of year as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
Current Liability (Amount due within one year)
0.08
Non-Current Liability (Amount due over one year)
5.50
Total Projected Benefit Obligation at the end of year
5.58

3.11
3.11
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[Rs. In Lakhs]
(vi)

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount trade, expected salary increase
and employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis
is given below:
31st March, 2022
31st March, 2021
Increased
Decreased
Increased
Decreased
Impact of change in discount rate (+/- 0.5%)
(0.40)
0.43
(0.27)
0.31
Impact of change in salary (+/- 0.5%)
0.41
(0.39)
0.29
0.27
Leave Encashment Plan:
31st March, 2022

II (i) Change in Present Value of benefit obligations :
Present value of obligation at the beginning (A)
Current Service Cost (B)
Interest Cost (C )
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (D)
Benefits Paid (E)
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses (F)
Present value of obligations at the end(F=A+B+C+D+E+F)
(ii)

Change in plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning (A)
Expected return on plan assets (B)
Employer's Contributions (C )
Benefits Paid (D)
Actuarial Gain (E)
Fair value of plan assets at the end (F=A+B+C+D+E)

(iii)

Net Liability/(Assets) ( i-ii )

(iv)

Net Leave Encashment for the year ended :
Current Service Cost (A)
Interest cost (B)
Expected return on plan assets (C )
Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognised in the year (D)
Past Service Cost including curtailment Gains/Losses (E)
Net Leave Encashment cost (E=A+B+C+D+E)

(v)

(vi)

Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
Current Liability (Amount due within one year)
Non-Current Liability (Amount due over one year)
Total PBO at the end of year

31st March, 2021

0.28
1.26
1.54

-

-

-

1.54

-

0.28
1.26
1.54

-

0.06
1.48
1.54

-

Sensitivity analysis for leave encashment
Significant Actuarial Assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount trade, expected salary increase
and employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below, have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis
is given below:
31st March, 2022
31st March, 2021
Increased
Decreased
Increased
Decreased
Impact of change in discount rate (+/- 0.5%)
(0.11)
0.12
Impact of change in salary (+/- 0.5%)
0.11
(11.00)
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
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The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment for the Company's plans are shown below :

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Note - 32: Related party disclosures
1.

(i)

Gratuity Plan and
Leave Encashment Plan
31st March, 2021
(%)
6.80%
10.00%

Related parties where control exists
Names of related parties and related party relationship
Holding company:

Rico Auto Industries Ltd.

Step down subsidiaries of holding company:

Rasa Autocom Ltd.
Rico Aluminum & Ferrous Auto Components Ltd.
Rico Jinfei Wheels Ltd.

Subsidiaries of holding Companies

Rico Auto Industries Inc. USA
Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited, UK
Rico investment limited
Rico Fluidtronics Limited
Rico Friction Technologies Private Ltd

Other Related Parties (Entity in which KMP
of Holding Company and their relatives
exercise significant influences)

ASN Manufacturing and Services Pvt Ltd
Kapbros Engineering Industries Limited
Magpie Manufacturing and Tech Private Limited
Meraki Manufacturing and Finvest Advisors Private Limited
Higain Investments Private Limited
Ishvara Manufacturing & Finvest Advisors Private Limited
Ishvara Exim LLP
ASN Properties Private Limited

KMP of Holding Company

Shri Arvind Kapur
Shri Arun Kapur

ii) Key Management personnel
Details of Key Managerial personnel are as under :
Name of key persons
Mr. Amit Mangla
Mr. Om Prakash Aggarwal
Mr. Arvind Kumar Mangla
Mr. Kaushalendra Verma
Mr. Manoj Kumar Jain
Mr.Naresh Kumar Sethi
2.

Gratuity Plan and
Leave Encashment Plan
31st March, 2022
(%)
7.18%
10.00%

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director

Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant
financial year :
31st March, 2022
31st March, 2021
[Rs. In Lakhs]
[Rs. In Lakhs]
RICO Auto Industries Ltd, Holding Co.
Material Purchase (Net of GST)
9.22
1.06
Electricity Expenses (Net of GST)
11.51
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[Rs. In Lakhs]
Rent Paid (Net of GST)
Sales of Component & Scrap
Shares issued
Amount receivables
(ii)

(iii)

21.96
301.41
7.56
81.81

Mr. Amit Mangla
Loan Payment
Shares issued other than cash
Transfer of share Rico Auto Industries
Balance Payable
Mrs. Kanchan Mangla
Loan Payment
Shares issued other than cash
Transfer of share Rico Auto Industries
Balance Payable
Loans (taken) payable

16.20
2.08

0.35
18.28

16.20
8.89

5.00
0.35
25.09

Note - 33: Detail of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
31st March, 2022
Balance payable
13.74
Interest Payable
Note - 34: Composition of imported and indigenous raw material (including components and spares)
31st March, 2022
Alumininum and Ferrous
-Indigenous
Value
131.77
% of total consumption
100%
Stores and spare parts
-Indigenous

Value in
% of total consumption

161.70
54.75

7.19

31st March, 2021
10.25
-

31st March, 2021
151.61
100%

Note - 35: Capital and other commitments

4.80
100%
31st March, 2022
Nil

0.19
100%
31st March, 2021
Nil

Note - 36: Contingent Liabilities

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

Nil

Nil

a. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
b. Guarantees issued by Bank on behalf of the Company and outstanding.
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Note - 37 : Financial instruments and risk management
37.1 A Financial Instruments by Category
March 31, 2022
FVTPL Amortised Cost
Financial assets*
Non Current
Other financial assets
Current
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Current
Short term borrowings
Trade payables
Other Financial Liabilities (including current maturities)
Total financial liabilities

March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised Cost

-

-

-

-

-

81.81
16.81
3.88
102.50

-

54.74
7.85
62.59

-

10.97
27.17
7.33

-

43.37
8.26
1.66

-

45.47

-

53.29

37.1.a Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above has been classified into three categories depending on the
inputs used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements] and lowest priority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurements].The categories
used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;
Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in
part using a net asset value or valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

37.1.b Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Current Investment in Mutual Funds
Current Investment in Mutual Funds

As at
March 31,2022
March 31,2021

Level 1
-

Level 2
-

Level 3
-

Total
-
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37.1.c Valuation technique used to determine fair value
The fair value of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (NAV) as stated by the issuers of these mutual
fund units in the published statements as at the Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue
further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.

Note: There were no specific financial instruments which were fair valued using level 3 indicators hence no unobservable
inputs.
Note: Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximate their fair values.
37.2

Financial risk management
The Company, is exposed to various market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. The laid down processes, periodic
communication, control framework and management process consisting of planning, controlling and monitoring collectively
form the risk management system used to define, record and minimise operating, financial and strategic risks. Below notes
explain the sources of risk in which the company is exposed to and how it manages the risk.
37.2.A Market risk:
a. Price risk:
The Company is using alminium and ferrous items for production of various products. Fluctuation in commodity prices in global
market affects directly and indirectly the price of raw material and components used by the Company in manufacturing its
various product segments. Further, Pricing pressure from its major Customer to give price cuts and the inability to pass on the
increased cost of inputs to the customers may also affect the profitability of the company.The Price risk arises due to fluctuation
in prices of these commodities.
The Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in commodity
prices. The Company’s commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established trading operations and control processes.
Further, the Company is having arrangement with major customer for actualization of raw material price variations periodically.

b. Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk arise from monetary receivables and obligations expressed in a currency other than functional currency of
the Company. Primarily the Company is catering to customers in local currency.
The derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure is as follows:
(i) Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date
Particulars / Purpose
Forward Contract (Buy)

Currency
-

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Nil
Nil

(ii) Particulars of unhedged foreign exposure as at the reporting date
The Company does not have unhedge foreign currency at the end of reporting period.
c. Interest rate risk:
Interest rate is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long
term debt obligation at floating interest rates.
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing at variable rate and fixed rate at the end of reporting period are as follows:
Particulars
Variable rate borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings

March 31, 2022
-

March 31, 2021
-
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Profit / loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a results of changes in interest rates. Holding all
other variable constant, the following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate on
floating portion of borrowings.

Variable rate borrowings

For the year
ended March
31, 2022
Nil
Nil

Interest rate increase by 0.5%
Interest rate decrease by 0.5%

For the year
ended March
31, 2021
Nil
Nil

37.2.B Credit Risk :
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations towards the Company and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and liquid
investments with banking institutions / mutual funds. The maximum amount of the credit exposure is equal to the carrying
amounts of these receivables.
The Company has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables. The Company’s primary
customer, is its ultimate holding company with good credit rating . Other customers are subjected to credit assessments as a
precautionary measure, and the adherence of all customers to payment due dates is monitored on an on-going basis, thereby
practically eliminating the risk of default.
37.2.C Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient stock of cash and marketable securities and maintaining availability of standby funding through
an adequate line up of committed credit facilities.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet the obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, liquidity management also involves projecting cash flows
considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilities
and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios.
(a) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest
and principal cash flows. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

0- 3 months3 - 6 months 6 months
- 1 Year
As at March 31, 2022
Borrowing
Trade Payable (Goods, Service & Capital
Goods)

Total

Total

More
than

Total

10.97
40.91

-

-

-

-

10.97
40.91

51.88

-

-

-

-

51.88

1 - 3 Years

More
than

0- 3 months3 - 6 months 6 months
- 1 Year
As at March 31, 2021
Borrowing
Trade Payable (Goods, Service & Capital
Goods)

1 - 3 Years

43.37
18.51

61.88

-

-

-

-

Total

43.37
18.51

-

61.88
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37.3 Capital management

The capital structure of the Company consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company which comprises issued share capital (including premium) and accumulated reserves disclosed in the
Statement of Changes in Equity. The Company’s capital management objective is to achieve an optimal weighted average cost
of capital while continuing to safeguard the Company’s ability to meet its liquidity requirements (including its commitments in
respect of capital expenditure) and repay loans as they fall due. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debt divided by total equity. The Company’s policy is
to keep an optimum gearing ratio. The Company includes within debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings.
A. Net Debt (Total Debt less cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total equity
Particulars
Debt
Cash and cash equivalent
Net Debts
Total Equity
Net debts to Total Equity

As at March 31, 2022
10.97
(16.81)
(5.84)
199.85
(0.04)

As at March 31, 2021
43.37
(7.85)
35.52
53.99
0.65

Loan covenants
The Company is in compliant with all the loan covenants on all the borrowings outstanding as on the financial statements date .
B. Dividends
Particulars

On Equity share of Rs.10 each
Final Dividend
- Amount of dividend paid
- Dividend per equity share
Interim Dividend
- Amount of dividend paid
- Dividend per equity share

38

For the year
ended March
31, 2022

For the year
ended March
31, 2021

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Segment wise revenue, results and capital employed

a. As the Company’s business activity falls within a single primary business segment viz. “manufacturing and sale of auto
components for two wheelers and four wheelers”, hence, the company has only one primary reportable business segment.
b. Secondary segment: Geographical- No such reporting required as company is operating in India only.

RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
(formerly Metalart Friction Private Limited)
Notes to financial Statements for year ended on 31st March, 2022
39. Disclosure of Ratios
Ratio
Measurement
unit

Current ratio
Debt-equity ratio

Times
Times

Numerator

Denominator

Current assets
Current liabilities
Total equity
Total debt
[Non-current borrowings +
Current borrowings]

As on 31st As on 31st Change
March 2022 March 2021
2.19
0.05

0.88
0.80

1.31
-0.75

-

-

Debt service coverage Times
ratio

Earnings available for debt
service [Profit/(loss) after
tax + Depreciation and
amortisation+impairment
+finance cost+ loss on sale
of property, plant and
equipment]

Debt service
(Interest and lease
payments+ principal
repayments)

-

Return on equity ratio Percentage

Net profit after tax

Average
shareholder's equity
[(opening
shareholder's equity
+ closing
shareholder's equity)
/2]
Average inventories
[(opening
inventories + closing
inventories) /2]

30.59%

Inventory turnover
ratio

Times

Costs of materials
consumed+Purchases of
stock-in-trade

Trade receivables
turnover ratio

Times

Trade payables
turnover ratio

Times

Net capital turnover
ratio

Times

Net profit ratio

Percentage

Return on capital
employed

Percentage

Revenue from operations Average trade
receivables
[(opening trade
receivables +closing
trade receivables
)/2]
Purchases + other
Average trade
expenses
payables [(opening
(excluding non cash
trade payables
expenses)
+closing trade
payables )/2]
Revenue from operations Working capital
[Current assets Current liabilities]
Net profit after tax
Revenue from
operations
Earnings before interest
Net worth + Total
and taxes (excluding
debt - Deferred tax
interest on lease
asset
liabilities)
Interest income on bank Current and nondeposits
current bank
deposits

Return on investment Percentage

Reason for Variance
Note 1-Control measure towards better utilisation of inventory

2753.05%

Remarks

-2722%

Note1

4.25

7.32

-3.06

4.41

7.34

-2.92

5.61

10.45

-4.84

0.00

0.00

-0.00

12.88%

24.96%

-12.08%

25.96%

227.88% -201.91%
Note1

-

-

-
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Previous year figures
Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year's classification.
In terms of our report of even date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

Rahool Adlakha
(Partner)
Membership No. 083788
Place : Gurugram
Dated :

Place : Gurugram
Dated : May 28, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
RICO FRICTION TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Amit Mangla
(Director)
(DIN: 08098974)

Om Prakash Aggarwal
(Director)
(DIN: 01537211)

FINANCIALS
OF
RASA AUTOCOM LIMITED
FOR THE FY 2021-22

FINANCIALS
OF
RICO ALUMINIUM AND FERROUS
AUTO COMPONENTS LIMITED
FOR THE FY 2021-22

FINANCIALS
OF
RICO JINFEI WHEELS LIMITED
FOR THE FY 2021-22

